BETHANY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Regular Meeting

AGENDA

Wednesday, November 5, 2021
6:30 p.m.

Bethany Community School Learning Commons

ALL ATTENDEES ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR A FACE MASK
REGARDLESS OF VACCINATION STATUS.

MISSION STATEMENT
We inspire and empower children to thrive in the world of tomorrow.

Call to Order
a. Pledge of Allegiance

PTO Report

Presentation Report
a. Portrait of a Graduate by Mr. Bruni and Mrs. Mordecai

Public Comment (Policy 1120 & Bylaw 9325)

The Board of Education welcomes public comment. Individuals or groups may
address the Board concerning any subject which is within the Board’s jurisdiction.
Three minutes will be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of fifteen minutes to
each subject matter. The speaker is requested to state their name and address.

Approval of Minutes (Bylaw 9326)
a. October 13, 2021 Reguiar Meeting Action ltem

Committee Reports (Bylaw 9132)
a. Finance

i.  Report of expenditures and adjustments to the 2021-2022 Operating
Budget through October 31, 2021 Action Item

. Curriculum

. Facilities

. Ad Hoc Facilities
. Policy




f. Transportation
g. ACES

7. Unfinished Business (Bylaw 9300)
a. None.

8. New Business (Bylaw 9300)
a. Superintendent Resignation Action ltem
b. 2022-2023 Proposed School Calendar

c. The Policy Committee met on October 12, 2021 and is recommending the following
policies for first reading:

i. Revisions Action ltem

1. Policy 1140 - Distribution of Materials

2. Policy 1212 — School Volunteers, Student Interns, and Other Non-
Employees

Policy 1250 — Visitors and Observations

Policy 1316 — Conduct on School Property

Policy 1411 — Law Enforcement Officials

Policy 1600 — Possession of Deadly Weapons or Firearms

Policy 2130 — Job Descriptions

Policy 2400 - Evaluation of the Superintendent

Policy 3520.13 — Data-Based Information and Management Systems
Policy 3524.2 — Green Cleaning Program

Policy 3543.31 — Retention of Electronic Records and Information
Policy 4111/4211 — Recruitment and Selection

Policy 4111.1/4211.1 — Equal Employment Opportunity

Policy 4118.11/4218.11 — Non-Discrimination and Equal Education
Opportunity

Policy 4131 — Staff Development

Policy 5111 — Admissions/Ages of Attendance/Placement
Policy 5118 — Resident and Nonresident Attendance
Policy 5124 — Reporting to Parents

Policy 5126 — Awards for Achievement

Policy 5131.911 — Bullying Prevention and Intervention
Policy 5141 — Student Health Services

Policy 5141.5 — Suicide Prevention

Policy 5145.2 — Freedom of Speech/Expression

Policy 5145.4 — Non-Discrimination

Policy 5145.511 — Sexual Abuse Prevention and Education Program
Policy 6112 -~ School Day

Policy 6171 — Special Education

Policy 6171.2 — Preschool Special Education

Bylaw 9273 - Civility Code

Bylaw 9325 — Meeting Conduct

Page 2



31. Bylaw 9327.1 — Board Member Use of Internet Social Networks

ii. Adoption Action Item
1. Policy 1321.2 — Videotaping of Educational Activities

Administrative Reports (Policy 2500)
a. Superintendent
b. Director of Special Services, Curriculum, and Instruction
c. Principal

Chairman Report (Bylaw 9121)
Correspondence (Bylaw 9300)

Public Comment (Policy 1120 & Bylaw 9325)

The Board of Education welcomes public comment. Individuals or groups may
address the Board concerning any subject which is within the Board’s jurisdiction.
Three minutes will be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of fifteen minutes to
each subject matter. The speaker is requested to state their name and address.

Executive Session
a. Personnel — Superintendent Search

Regular Meeting Reconvenes

Meeting Adjourned




Memorandum

To: Board of Education Members

From: Colleen Murray, SuperintendeW/

Date: November 10, 2021

Re: Meeting Minutes

It is recommended under APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Recommended Motion:

a. Move the Bethany Board of Education accept the October 13, 2021 Regular
Meeting Minutes as presented.



BETHANY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Regular Meeting Minutes

October 13, 2021
Present Administration
Angelo Amato Colleen Murray
John Paul Garcia Kai Byrd
Amy Lestinsky, Vice Chair Tom Reed-Swale
Chris Pittenger, Chair
Lynette White, Secretary Absent

Call to Order
PTO Report

Presentation

Public Comment

Minutes

Committee Reports

Finance:

Angel Irigoyen

EJ Maher

Shawn Uscilla
Namita Wijesekera

Dr. Pittenger called the meeting to order at 6:39 p.m.
Mrs. Amy Lestinsky reported on recent and upcoming PTO events.

Mr. Reed-Swale, Ms. Nathman, Mrs. Hubbard, and Mr. Bruni gave a
presentation on Student Achievement and fielded.questions from Board
members.

None.

Motion by Lestinsky, seconded by. Amato to accept the September 1,
2021 Regular Meeting Minutes as presented. The motion carries 3 yes,
2 abstain  (Garcia, White), 4 absent (Irigoyen, Maher, Uscilla,
Wijesekera).

Dr. Pittenger reported there was an error on the June 2021 Operating
Budget Summary which was corrected and now needs reapproval.

Motion by Garcia, seconded by White to accept the revised final report
of expenditures and adjustments to the 2020-2021 Operating Budget
through June 30, 2021 as presented. The motion carries 5 yes, 4 absent
(Irigoyen, Maher, Uscilla, Wijesekera).

Motion by Garcia, seconded by Lestinsky to accept the report of
expenditures and adjustments to the 2021-2022 Operating Budget
through August 31, 2021 as presented. The motion carries 5 yes, 4
absent (Irigoyen, Maher, Uscilla, Wijesekera).

Motion by Garcia, seconded by Amato to accept the report of
expenditures and adjustments to the 2021-2022 Operating Budget
through September 30, 2021 as presented. The motion carries 5 yes, 4
absent (Irigoyen, Maher, Uscilla, Wijesekera).

Dr. Pittenger further reported on an Electricity Look Back, Solar Panel
Project, Grants, and the 2022-2023 Budget Process.

Page 1



Curriculum:

Facilities:

Ad Hoc Facilities:

Policy:

Transportation:

ACES:

Unfinished Business

New Business

Superintendent Report

Director Report

Principal Report

Chairman Report

Communications

Public Comment

The committee met last week and discussed technology, curriculum
programs, professional learning, Equity Team, and were given a student
achievement presentation.

The committee is scheduled to meet on December 7, 2021.

The committee has not met recently but Mrs. Murray provided an email
to the committee on the status of the facility assessments being done
and will reconvene once the results are in. Mrs. Murray announced that
Rob White Architects was chosen as the architect for the outdoor
learning project.

The committee met last night and will be presenting several policies for
first reading in November.

The committee has not met recently.
None.
None.
None.

Mrs. Murray reported that on September 30, 2021, PK-6 enroliment was
388 students.

Mrs. Murray provided an update on new personnel and the status of
posted positions.

Mrs. Murray reported on Project COVID DeteCT student screening
program. To date, 76 students will be taking advantage of the program
which is scheduled to begin the week of October 25%.

Mrs. Byrd reported on Curriculum and Special Services. Her report is on
file in the BOE Packet.

Mr. Reed-Swale reported on BCS's recent and upcoming events. His
report is on file in the BOE Packet.

Dr. Pittenger announced the Fall BOE Open Forum will be held on
Thursday, October 28" at 6:30 pm via Zoom.

Dr. Pittenger reminded Board members that the CABE Conference in
November is a great event.

Reviewed and placed on file.

David Grimes, 22 Woods Road, addressed the Board on the following
topics:
e Atransparent Superintendent search with public participation.

* Consideration for students to access lockers, playground, and
cafeteria.

e Possibility of allowing students more freedoms once vaccine is
available.

Page 2



Executive Session

Reconvene

Business

Adjournment

Susan L. Carpenter
Recording Secretary

Motion by Pittenger, seconded by Garcia that the Board of Education
enters into Executive Session to discuss the Superintendent’s 2021-
2022 goals and the Superintendent Search and that Colleen Murray and
Susan Carpenter are invited to attend. The motion carries 5 yes, 4
absent (Irigoyen, Maher, Uscilla, Wijesekera).

Attendance

Present Other

Angelo Amato Colleen Murray
John Paul Garcia Susan Carpenter
Amy Lestinsky, Vice Chair

Chris Pittenger, Chair Absent

Lynette White, Secretary Angel Irigoyen

EJ Maher
Shawn Uscilla
Namita Wijesekera

Moved from Executive Session and.the regular meeting reconvened at
9:09 p.m.

Motion by Pittenger, seconded by Garcia to amend the agenda to
appoint a Superintendent Search Committee in light of Superintendent
Colleen Murray’s retirement effective June 30, 2022. The motion carries
5 yes, 4 absent (Irigoyen, Maher, Uscilla, Wijesekera).

Motion by. Pittenger, seconded by Amato that the Board of Education
as a whole is appointed as the Executive Search Committee for the
Superintendent position. The motion carries 5 yes, 4 absent (Irigoyen,
Maher, Uscilla, Wijesekera).

The meeting adjourned at 9:11.p.m.

Page 3



Memorandum

To: Board of Education Members

From: Colleen Murray, Superintendw/

Date: November 10, 2021

Re: Finance Committee Report of Expenditures and Adjustments

It is recommended that under COMMITTEE REPORTS, (a) Finance:

Recommended Motion:

i. Move that the Board of Education accept the report of expenditures and
adjustments to the 2021-2022 Operating Budget through October 31, 2021.



Bethany Board of Education

Adopted Revised YTD Var$ Var% Var$ Var%
General Education

Salaries
Certified $2,130,753 $2,093,890 $380,047 $1,907,529 ¢ 112,082 535%| $ 186,361 8.90%
Curriculum (Supplemental) $29,700 $26,500 $26,709 $26,709] § - 0.00% $ (209) -0.79%
Non-Certified $328,222 $246,756 $57,968 $287,420| $ - 0.00%| $ (40,664) -16.48%
Nurse $49,852 $51,552 $8,769 $51,552] $ - 0.00%] $ - 0.00%
'Total Salaries | I

$2,538,527. $2,418,699 $473,493 $2,273,210 $ 112,082 a63%| § 145489 6.02%
'Benefits $608,150 | $545,865 $202,567 $545,865 $ - 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
Services
BCS $4,800 $79,944 $0 $69,944| ¢ 10,000 12.51%| § 10,000 12.51% |
Curriculum $51,006 $54,206 $31,413 $54,206 ¢ . 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
IT $45,750 $45,750 $12,553 $45,750| ¢ - 0.00%] $ - 0.00% |
Total Services $101,556 $179,900 $43,966 $169,900| ¢ 10,000 556%|$ 10,000 5.56%
Supplies
BCS $52,419 $52,419 $21,663 $52,419 . ] 000 $ . 0.00%
Curriculum $7,889 $7,889 $779 $7,889] § - 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
IT $15,400 $100,920 $73,058 $100,920( § - 0.00%| $ - 0.00% |
Total Supplies $75,708 $161,228 $95,500 $161,228| ¢ - 0.00%| $ - 0.00% |
Other .
BCS $1,300 $1,300 $265 $1,300] § - 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
Curriculum $1,825 $1,825 $0 $1,825| § - 0.00%] $ - 0.00%
IT $41,500 $41,500 $27,369 $41,500( $ - 0.00%] $ - 0.00%
Total Other $44,625 $44,625 $27,634 $44,625| ¢ . 0.00%] $ - 0.00%
Subtotal $3,368,566 __ $3,350,317 $843,161 $3,194,828| $ 122,082 3.64%| $ 155,489 4.64%
Salaries $1,216,466 $1,218,819 $296,478 $1,244,642 3 (118) 0.01%] $ (25,823) -2.12%
Benefits $342,816 $307,609 $123,088 $307,609! $ - 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
Services $405,901 $406,591 $77,857 $406,591( $ - 0.00%] $ . 0.00%
Supplies $17,982 $17.982 $9,400 $17,982( ¢ - 0.00%] $ . 0.00%
Other $1,110 $1,10 $250 $1,110| $ - 0.00%] $ - 0.00%
Subtotal $1,984,275  $1,952,111 $507,072 $1,977,934| $ (118) -0.01%| $  (25,823) -1.32% |
Salaries $897,553  $1,008,951 $328,029  $1,005,699] § 5,310 0.53%| $§ 3,252 0.32%
Benefits $245,787 $258,322 $71,713 $248,322| ¢ 10,000 387%|$ 10,000 3.87%
Services $224,845 $139,325 $39,586 $139,325( ¢ - 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
Supplies $39,500 $42,500 $14,731 $42,500( ¢ - 0.00%( $ - 0.00%
Utilities (Electricity) $80,000 $100,000 $20,380 $100,000| § - 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
Facilities and Maintenance $116,100 $91,100 $31,392 $91,100| - 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
Student Transportation $269,185 $269,185 $80,756 $ 269,185.00 | § - 0.00%!| $ - 0.00%
|Other $15,675 $29,675 $12,948 $ 29675.00 | $ - 0.00%| $ - 0.00%
Subtotal $1,888,645 $1,939,058 $599,534 $1,925806.08/ § 15,310 0.79%] § 13,252 0.68%
COVID
BCS-COVID $0 $0 $0 $0( $ - $ -
Curriculum COVID $0 $0 $0 $0| $ - $ -
IT-COVID $0 $0 $0 $0( g - $ -
SpEd COVID $0 $0 $0 $0[ $ - $ -
BOE-COVID $0 $0 $0 $0| $ - $ -
Sub Total $0 $0. $0 so| - $ .
_Total $7,241,486  $7,241,486 $1,949,767 $7,098,568| $ 137,273 1.90%] $ 142,917 1.97%




Memorandum

To: Board of Education Members

From: Colleen Murray, SuperintendeWy\/

Date: November 10, 2021

Re: Resignation

It is recommended under NEW BUSINESS:

Recommended Motion:

a. Move the Bethany Board of Education accept with regret the resignation of

Superintendent Colleen Murray effective June 30, 2022 and wish her well in her
retirement.



Bethany Public School District

Colleen Murray, Superintendent

44 Peck Road Phone (203) 393-1170
Bethany, Connecticut 06524 Fax (203) 393-0239
cmurray@bethany-ed.org www.bethany-ed.org

November 10, 2021

Dear Bethany Board of Education,

Since | was a very young child, | knew | wanted to be a teacher when | grew up. | love everything
having to do with teaching and learning, and feel so fortunate that | was able to fulfill all of my
professional dreams. | began my career as a paraprofessional 42 years ago while still in college.
I've taught in public and private schools at a variety of elementary grade levels and served as a
Dean of Students, Assistant Principal, Principal, Director of Curriculum and Instruction, and
Superintendent.

After seven years as your Superintendent, it is with mixed emotions that | share my plan to resign
and retire on June 30, 2022. | am honored that you allowed me to end my career here in Bethany.
Who's had it better than |? I've spent a lifetime with children. They've kept me young. They've
taught me to be curious, to accept unconditionally, and to live in the moment. I've had the privilege
of working with some of the most amazing educators and staff along my journey; those who either
joined my crazy, ignited my passion, or supported a vision to provide a safe and quality education
for those in our charge. | am appreciative of the positive relationships | was able to build with the
students, families and citizens of this fine community. | am especially grateful for the support I've
received from the Bethany Board of Education. Together, we made a difference in the lives of so
many children.

In closing, it truly has been an honor for me to serve the Town of Bethany as your Superintendent
of Schools and respectfully request that you accept this letter of resignation effective June 30,
2022.

With love and tremendous gratitude,

Colleen M. Murray

Superintendent



Memorandum

To: Board of Education Members

From: Colleen Murray, Superintendw/

Date: November 10, 2021

Re: New Business

It is recommended that under NEW BUSINESS:

Recommended Motion:

c.(i.)1.-31. Move that the Board of Education accept the policies for revision for first
reading.

c.(ii.)1. Move that the Board of Education accept the policy for adoption for first
reading.



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1140
Distribution of Materials

Printed materials may be distributed to parents/guardians as a means of mass communications. At the
same time, this procedure can prove objectionable to parents/guardians and the School District, if
overdone.

To provide the most effective use of this technique without exploitation of staff or students; the
Superintendent or his/her designee may approve such distribution providing:

1. The materials relate to the school, community, local recreational or civic activities.
2. The materials do not promote private gain or political position.
3. The materials do not promote any political party or candidate.

All requests from non-school related groups or individuals to have students distribute materials will be
referred to the office of the Superintendent to determine whether the requests comply with overall
school purposes and policy.

The Principal will have oversight of materials for distribution by students requested by school-related
organizations such as the Parent Teacher Organization.

Budget/Referendum Materials

Information concerning a budget or referendum, specifying only the time, date, location and question or
proposal may be disseminated through the students. This information may not contain statements or be
written in a manner which may advocate a position on the budget or on a referendum question.

Advertising in the Schools

No advertising of materials used for commercial purposes shall be permitted in the school or on the
grounds of the District without prior approval of the Superintendent. Advertising in student
publications, including but not limited to school newsletters, planners, notebooks, or book bags, shall be
regulated by rules and regulations developed by the Superintendent. Ads concerning drug
paraphernalia and any controlled substance are prohibited in any school-sponsored publication.

The Superintendent or his/her designee shall interpret this policy strictly. In case of differences
regarding the decision, the decision of the Superintendent will be final in order that the best interests of
the students will be served.

Dissemination of Religious Materials

Materials that have a religious content may be made available to students during non-instructional time.
The District shall impose content-neutral, time, place, and manner restrictions on the dissemination of
religious materials to ensure that students are aware that the materials are not being endorsed or
sponsored by the District.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 9-369b
Policy adopted: September 9, 1991

Policy revised: October 7, 2015

Policy revised: December 12, 2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1140

Recommended Revisions
Distribution of Materials

Printed materials may be distributed to parents/guardians as a means of mass communications. At the
same time, this procedure can prove objectionable to parents/guardians and the Sehoel Bethany Public
School District (District), if overdone.

To provide the most effective use of this technique without exploitation of staff or students, the
Superintendent or his/her designee may approve such distribution providing:

1. The materials relate to the school, community, local recreational or civic activities.

2. The materials do not promote any religious belief or activity, private gain, or political position.
3. The materials do not promote any political party or candidate.

All requests from non- school related groups or 1nd1v1duals to have—students dlstrlbute materlals,ﬂ_u;h
ees, will be

overall school purposes and policy.

The Principal will have oversight of materials for distribution by students requested by school-related
organizations such as the Parent Teacher Organization.

Budget/Referendum Materials

Information concerning a budget or referendum, specifying only the time, date, location, and question
or proposal may be disseminated throughthe students. This information may not contain statements or
be written in a manner which may advocate a position on the budget or on a referendum question.

Advertising in the Schools

No advertising of materials used for commercial purposes shall be permitted in the school or on the
grounds of the District without prior approval of the Superintendent. Advertising in student
publications, including but not limited to school newsletters, planners, notebooks, or book bags, shall be
regulated by rules and regulations developed determined by the Superintendent. Ads concerning drug
paraphernalia and any controlled substance are prohibited in any school-sponsored publication.

The Superintendent or his/her designee shall interpret this policy strictly. In case of differences
regarding the decision, the decision of the Superintendent will be final in order that the best interests of
the students will be served.

Dissemination of Religious Materials

Materials that have a religious content may be made available to students during non-instructional time.
The District shall impose content-neutral, time, place, and manner restrictions on the dissemination of
religious materials to ensure that students are aware that the materials are not being endorsed or
sponsored by the District.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 9-369b

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Policy revised: October 7, 2015
Policy revised: December 12,2018

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1212

School Volunteers, Student Interns and Other Non-Employees

The Board of Education recognizes that volunteers can make many valuable contributions to the
school. Volunteers can enhance collaboration between the school and community, broaden the
school’s educational environment and ultimately enrich students’ school experience. The Board
further acknowledges that it may, from time to time, be asked to provide learning experiences for
student interns within the school environments. In recognition of the benefit of having volunteers,
interns and other such non-employees providing services within the schools, the Board supports the
involvement of these individuals in accordance with suitable regulations and safeguards to be
developed by the Superintendent.

Volunteers, interns and other such non-employees working within the schools (“volunteers”) must
work under the supervision of the Bethany Public School District staff. Volunteers are held to the same
standards of conduct as school staff and must observe all Board of Education policies, including
applicable policies on the confidentiality of student information.

Volunteers may be required to submit to state and federal criminal record checks and a record check
of the Department of Children and Families (“DCF”) Child Abuse and Neglect Registry. No person who
is required to register as a sex offender under state or federal law, or whose name is currently listed on
the DCF registry, may volunteer in the Bethany Public School District.

Persons interested in volunteering their services should contact the school principal.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-4g
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-235
Connecticut General Statutes § 54-254 et seq.

Policy adopted: November 17,1998
Policy revised: November 10, 2004
Policy revised: October 7, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1212

Mandated Revisions
School Volunteers, Student Interns, and Other Non-Employees

The Bethany-Board of Education (Board) recognizes that volunteers can make many valuable
contributions to the school. Volunteers can enhance collaboration between the school and community,
broaden the school’s educational environment and ultimately enrich students’ school experience. The
Board further acknowledges that it may, from time to time, be asked to provide learning experiences
for student interns within the school environments. In recognition of the benefit of having volunteers,
interns and other such non-employees providing services within the schools, the Board supports the
involvement of these individuals in accordance with suitable regulations and safeguards to be
developed by the Superintendent.

Volunteers, interns and other such non-employees working within the schools (volunteers) must work
under the supervision of the Bethany Public School District (District) staff. Volunteers are held to the
same standards of conduct as school staff and must observe all Board ef-Education policies, including
applicable policies on the confidentiality of student information.

Volunteers may be required to submit to state and federal criminal record checks and a record check
of the Department of Children and Families (DCF) Child Abuse and Neglect Registry. No person who is
required to register as a sex offender under state or federal law, or whose name is currently listed on

the DCF registry, may volunteer in the Bethany-PRublic-Schoeol District.

All volunteers must comply with all school health and safety protocols in place at the time, including
but not limited to any health screening protocols.

Persons interested in volunteering their services should contact the school principal.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-4g
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-235
Connecticut General Statutes § 54-254 et seq.

Policy adopted: November 17, 1998
Policy revised: November 10, 2004
Policy revised: October 7, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018
Policy revised:

Source: Shipman

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1250

Visitors and Observations

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) and Administration of the Bethany Public School District
(District) encourages visits by members of the community and other interested parties to the school.
Such visits shall be regarded as expressions of interest in school affairs and/or efforts to become
informed about school programs and activities.

In order to promote a safe and productive educational environment for all students and staff, the
Board requires all visitors to receive prior approval from the Administration or his/her designee
before being permitted to visit the school. The Board, through the Administration, reserves the right to
limit visits in accordance with Administrative Regulations.

The Board further desires to work collaboratively with parents/guardians to observe their student in
their current classroom or observe proposed educational placements within the school or with an
educational nexus, and its educational programs. This includes, but is not limited to, conferencing and
planning meetings. The Board, through the Administration, reserves the right to limit observations of
current and proposed educational placements in accordance with Administrative Regulations and the
Board’s Guidelines for Independent Educational Evaluations.

Although Board members are encouraged to visit schools independently, they have authority only in
regularly called meetings of the Board, or when delegated specific tasks by specific Board action.

Upon arrival, all visitors and observers must comply with any and all applicable building security
procedures, including but not limited to utilizing security buzzers for access, complying with requests
for photo identification, reporting directly to and signing in and out at the visitors’ reception area of
the school office, prominently displaying visitors’ badges or other identification required for visitors to
the school, limiting access to those areas of the building and grounds for which the visitors/observers
have authorized access, and complying with directives of school officials at all times.

The administration or his/her designees shall have complete authority to exclude from the school
premises any persons whom he/she has reason to believe are disrupting the educational programs in
the classroom or in the school, are disturbing the teachers or students on the premises, or whom the
administration believes are on the premises for the purposes of committing an illegal act.

Legal Reference: “Guidelines Regarding Independent Educational Evaluations at Public Expense
and In-School Observations,” Connecticut State Department of Education
(March 28, 2018).

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: November 18, 2015
Policy revised: June 13, 2018
Policy revised: December 12,2018
Policy revised: January 8, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1250

Recommended Revisions

Visitors and Observations

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) and Administration of the Bethany Public School District
(Dlstrlct) encourages visits by members of the commumty and other mterested partles to the school

mfe#med—abe&t—seheet—p#egmms—and—ae&mﬂes In order to promote a safe and productlve educatlonal

‘environment for all students and staff, the Board requires all visitors to receive prior approval from
the Administration or his/her designee before being permitted to visit the school. The Board, through
the Administration, reserves the right to limit visits in accordance with Administrative Regulations.

‘The Board further desires to work collaboratively with parents/guardians with an educational nexus,
its_educational programs, or the student being observed, to observe their student in their current
classroom or observe proposed educational placements within the school er-with-an-educational
nexus-and-its-educational-programs. This-includesbut-is-notlimited-to,conferencing-and planning
meetings: The Board, through the Administration, reserves the right to limit observations of current
and proposed educational placements in accordance with Administrative Regulations and the Board'’s

Guidelines for Independent Educational Evaluations.

Although Board members are encouraged to visit schools independently, they have authority only in
regularly called meetings of the Board, or when delegated specific tasks by specific Board action.

Upon arrival, all visitors and observers must comply with any and all applicable building security
procedures, including but not limited to utilizing security buzzers for access, complying with requests
for photo identification, reporting directly to and signing in and out at the visitors’ reception area of
the school office, prominently displaying visitors’ badges or other identification required for visitors to
the school, limiting access to those areas of the building and grounds for which the visitors/observers
have authorized access, and complying with directives of school officials at all times. All visitors and
Qbse[vers genmﬂedmto the SQhQQl oron school grouncls_musL comply with all schoo] health and

The Administration or his/her designees shall have complete authority to exclude from the school
premises any persons whom he/she has reason to believe are disrupting the educational programs in
the classroom or in the school, are disturbing the teachers or students on the premises, or whom the
Administration believes are on the premises for the purposes of committing an illegal act.

Legal Reference: “Guidelines Regarding Independent Educational Evaluations at Public Expense
and In-School Observations,” Connecticut State Department of Education
(March 28, 2018).

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: November 18, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018
Policy revised: December 12, 2018
Policy revised: January 8, 2020
Policy revised:

Source: Shipman

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1316(a)

Conduct on School Property

The Board of Education expects mutual respect, civility and orderly conduct among all individuals on
school property or at school events. District staff will treat parents and other members of the public with
respect and expect the same in return. The Board is committed to maintaining orderly educational and
administrative processes in keeping schools and administrative offices free from disruptions and
preventing unauthorized persons from entering school/District grounds.

This policy promotes mutual respect, civility and orderly conduct among Board members, District
employees, parents and the public. It is not intended to deprive any individual of his/her right to
freedom of expression, but only to maintain to the extent possible and reasonable, a safe, harassment-
free environment for students and staff. Volatile, hostile or aggressive actions and words cannot be
tolerated, and individuals who engage in these activities may face legal penalties.

In the interest of presenting Board members and District employees as positive role models to the
students as well as to the community, the Board encourages positive communication and discourages
volatile, hostile or aggressive actions. The Board seeks public cooperation with this endeavor.

A.  Expected behaviors include but are not limited to:

Respect and courtesy in language, demeanor, and actions.
Moderate tone and volume of voice.

Active and respectful listening.

Respectful acknowledgement of cultural differences.
Respect for the personal, civil, and property rights of others.

Appropriate and courteous use of telephone, public address systems, electronic devices
and any other verbal communication device.

7.  Appropriate and courteous written communication, including notes, letters, email and
text messages.

A e

B.  Unacceptable behaviors include but are not limited to:

Rude, insulting or demeaning language and/or actions.
Persistently unreasonable demands.

Intrusive and/or interruptive behavior.

Displays of temper.

Harassment and intimidation.

Threatening and/or abusive gestures and behavior.

S o

Incidents of uncivil behavior should be resolved cooperatively with the individual(s) most directly
involved.

Any individual who disrupts or threatens to disrupt normal school or office operations; threatens the
health and safety of students or staff; willfully causes property damage; uses loud or offensive language
which could provoke a violent reaction; or who has otherwise established a continued pattern of
unauthorized entry on District property, will be directed to leave the premises by a member of the
administrative staff or his/her designee.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS

Legal Reference:

Policy adopted:
Policy reviewed:

Connecticut General Statutes § 1-225
Connecticut General Statutes § 1-232
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-238
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-239

1316(b)

Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-185

November 18, 2015
January 9, 2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1316(a)

Recommended Revisions
Conduct on School Property

The Bethany Board of Education {Board) expects mutual respect, civility, and orderly conduct among all
individuals on school property or at school events. Bethany Public School District {District) staff will
treat parents/guardians and other members of the public with respect and expect the same in return.
The Board is committed to maintaining orderly educational and administrative processes in keeping
schools and administrative offices free from disruptions and preventing unauthorized persons from
entering scheeol/District grounds.

This policy promotes mutual respect, civility, and orderly conduct among Board members, District
employees, parents/guardians, and the public. It is not intended to deprive any individual of his/her the
right to freedom of expression, but only to maintain to the extent possible and reasonable, a safe,
harassment-free environment for students and staff. Volatile, hostile, or aggressive actions and words
cannot be tolerated, and individuals who engage in these activities may face legal penalties.

In the interest of presenting Board members and District employees as positive role models to the
students as well as to the community, the Board encourages positive communication and discourages
volatile, hostile, or aggressive actions. The Board seeks public cooperation with this endeavor.

A.  Expected behaviors include but are not limited to:

Respect and courtesy in language, demeanor, and actions.

Moderate tone and volume of voice.

Active and respectful listening.

Respectful ackrowledgement acknowledgment of cultural differences.
Respect for the personal, civil, and property rights of others.

Appropriate and courteous use of telephone, public address systems, electronic devices,
and any other verbal communication device.

7.  Appropriate and courteous written communication, including notes, letters, email, and
text messages.

ok W NE

B.  Unacceptable behaviors include but are not limited to:

Rude, insulting, or demeaning language and/or actions.
Persistently unreasonable demands.

Intrusive and/or interruptive behavior.

Displays of temper.

Harassment and intimidation.

Threatening and/or abusive gestures and behavior.

ok W

Incidents of uncivil behavior should be resolved cooperatively with the individual(s) most directly
involved.

Any individual who disrupts or threatens to disrupt normal school or office operations; threatens the
health and safety of students or staff; willfully causes property damage; uses loud or offensive language
which could provoke a violent reaction; or who has otherwise established a continued pattern of
unauthorized entry on District property, will be directed to leave the premises by a member of the
administrative staff or his/her designee.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



If any member of the public uses obscenities or speaks in a_
demeaning manner, the staff member t

admonish the §gggl§ggjo_cgnnnumcate QIML!L\Q 1£1h¢Labu51gg party does not take chremye_acn@.-thg
District empl

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 1-225
Connecticut General Statutes § 1-232
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-238
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-239
Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-185

Policy adopted: November 18, 2015
Policy reviewed: January 9, 2018
Policy revised:

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 141 1(a)
Law Enforcement Officials

The School is responsible for students during school hours. This responsibility includes protecting
each student's constitutional rights, assuring due process in questioning and arrest, protecting
students from any form of illegal coercion and keeping students safe from physical and emotional
harm. Because of the many support services that local law enforcement agencies provide to the school,
staff, and students, the Board of Education supports the best possible relationship with those agencies
consistent with the District’s responsibilities to protect legal rights of staff and students.

This policy is intended to balance the needs of school and police officials. The reduction of ambiguity
and confusion in how these officials interact will provide an optimal environment for education while
ensuring that the public safety needs of the school and community are adequately met. Priority shall
be given to law enforcement's involvement in threat assessments and in the planning and
implementation of school District emergency plans, security procedures, intervention and crisis
response.

Law enforcement officials are viewed as key community stakeholders in developing and implementing
a comprehensive emergency readiness plan for the District.

Interview of Students

Police interviews generally will not take place on school grounds. However, if the police do indicate
that an interview on school grounds is necessary, school authorities may cooperate. When the
interview involves a juvenile, a parent must be present. The exceptions to this rule are a) if the student
is being interviewed as a victim and/or b) if there is an overriding immediate public safety concern. If
a student under the age of sixteen (16) is being interviewed by the police and the parent/guardian
cannot be present, a member of the school staff should be present.

When police are investigating possible criminal acts which occurred or may have occurred, on school
property, or while under the jurisdiction of the District, they may question students at school when the
following procedures are observed:

Students will be questioned as confidentially and inconspicuously as possible.

2. An attempt will be made to notify the student's parent/guardian so that they may be present
during the questioning. The school principal or his/her designee will be present. The
administrator shall maintain a written record of all such interviews conducted.

3.  Preferably, the officer doing the questioning will wear civilian clothes.

When investigating a possible criminal violation occurring off school grounds or not part of a school
program, police will be encouraged to question students in their homes; however, they may be
permitted to question students in the schools when the procedures outlined in 1-3 above are observed.
Police will make every attempt to minimize distractions or disruption of school routines during the
performance of their duties.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1411(b)

Arrest of Students

The decision to call the police and request an arrest is within the discretion of the building
administrator. The principal may request the arrest of a student or there are times in which the police
may request to pick up a student due to' a warrant being issued for his/her arrest. If the school
principal agrees to assist in the arrest of a student, the student should be escorted from class by school
personnel and remain in a secured office until the police arrive. The arrested student will be removed
from the school in a way that minimizes embarrassment to the student and any disruption of the
school routine.

Weapons

In cases where a student is suspected of carrying a dangerous weapon and there is a safety issue
inherent in the search process, the student should be secured in a private area and the police should be
contacted to conduct the search.

If a search is conducted by a school official and a weapon is found, weapons that are illegal should be
turned over to the police immediately by the school official. lllegal weapons include knives with over a
four-inch blade, dirk knives, switchblade knives, martial arts weapons and firearms. Ammunition
should also be immediately turned over to the police. Weapons that are not illegal but are a violation of
school policy may be retained by the principal.

Designation of Authority

The Superintendent is authorized to develop procedures regarding this policy, including a process to
ensure that appropriate staff has been informed, and to establish lines of communication with local
law enforcement agencies to effect necessary cooperation toward ensuring the security of the school
facilities, and the safety of students and staff.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-21
Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-185
Connecticut General Statutes § 54-76j

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: December 9, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1411(a)

Recommended Revisions
Law Enforcement Officials

The Sehool school is responsible for students during school hours. This responsibility includes
protecting each student's constitutional rights, assuring due process in questioning and arrest,
protecting students from any form of illegal coercion, and keeping students safe from physical and
emotional harm. Because of the many support services that local law enforcement agencies provide to
the school, staff, and students, the Bethany Board of Education (Board) supports the best possible
relationship with those agencies consistent with the Bethany Public School District's [District)
responsibilities to protect legal rights of staff and students.

This policy is intended to balance the needs of school and police officials. The reduction of ambiguity
and confusion in how these officials interact will provide an optimal environment for education while
ensuring that the public safety needs of the school and community are adequately met. Priority shall
be given to law enforcement's involvement in threat assessments and in the planning and
implementation of scheel District emergency plans, security procedures, intervention, and crisis
response.

Law enforcement officials are viewed as key community stakeholders in developing and implementing
a comprehensive emergency readiness plan for the District.

Interview of Students

Police interviews generally will not take place on sehee! District grounds. However, if the police do
indicate that an interview on seheel District grounds is necessary, school authorities may cooperate.
When the interview involves a juvenile, a parent/guardian must be present. The exceptions to this rule
are a) if the student is being interviewed as a victim and/or b) if there is an overriding immediate
public safety concern. If a student under the age of sixteen (16) is being interviewed by the police and
the parent/guardian cannot be present, a District employee member-of-the-school-staff should be
present. '

When police are investigating possible criminal acts which occurred or may have occurred, on schosl
District property, or while under the jurisdiction of the District, they may question students at school
when the following procedures are observed:

1.  Students will be questioned as confidentially and inconspicuously as possible.

2. An attempt will be made to notify the student's parent/guardian so that they may be present
‘durmg the questlonmg The school principal or has/-hep de51gnee will be present The

conducted.

3. Preferably, the officer doing the questioning will wear civilian clothes.

When investigating a possible criminal violation occurring off school grounds or not part of a school
program, police will be encouraged to question students in their homes; however, they may be
permitted to question students in the sehoels school when the procedures outlined in 1-3 above are
observed. Police will make every attempt to minimize distractions or disruption of school routines
during the performance of their duties.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1411(b)

Arrest of Students

The decision to call the police and request an arrest is within the discretion of the-building
administrater-school administration. The prineipal school administration may request the arrest of a
'student or there are times in which the police may request to pick up a student due to a warrant being
issued for his/her the individual's arrest. If the school prineipal administration agrees to assist in the
arrest of a student, the student should be escorted from class by scheol persennel a District employee,
and remain in a secured office until the police arrive. The arrested student will be removed from the
school in a way that minimizes embarrassment to the student and any disruption of the school routine.

At no time will a student be released officer withou the i
court order, c) arrest, d) protective custody resulting from child abuse i igati
the parent/guardian,

Weapons

In cases where a student is suspected of carrying a dangerous weapon and there is a safety issue
inherent in the search process, the student should be secured in a private area and the police should be
contacted to conduct the search.

illegal should be turned over to the police lmmedlately by the schoolofficial ggs;mﬂ_ejj;glg,\gw Illegal
weapons include knives with over a four-inch blade, dirk knives, switchblade knives, martial arts
weapons, and firearms. Ammunition should also be immediately turned over to the police. Weapons
that are not illegal but are a violation of school policy may be retained by the—prineipal school

adminpistration.

Designation of Authority

The Superintendent is authorized to develop procedures regarding this policy, including a process to
ensure that appropriate staff has been informed, and to establish lines of communication with local
law enforcement agencies to effect necessary cooperation toward ensuring the security of the school
facilities, and the safety of students and staff.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-21-221

Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-185
Connecticut General Statutes § 54-76j

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: December 9, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018
Policy revised:

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1600(a)

Possession of Deadly Weapons or Firearms

Definitions:

a. Deadly Weapon means "any weapon, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a
shot may be discharged, or a switchblade knife, gravity knife, billy, blackjack,
bludgeon, or metal knuckles.” Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-3(6).

b.  Firearm means "any sawed-off shotgun, machine gun, rifle, shotgun, pistol, revolver,
or other weapon, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a shot may be discharged.”
Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-3(19).

c. Peace Officer means “a member of the Division of State Police within the
Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection or an organized local police
department, a chief inspector or inspector in the Division of Criminal Justice, a state
marshal while exercising authority granted under any provision of the general
statutes, a judicial marshal in the performance of the duties of a judicial marshal, a
conservation officer or special conservation officer, as defined in section 26-5, a
constable who performs criminal law enforcement duties, a special policeman
appointed under sections 29-18, 29-18a or 29-19, an adult probation officer, an official
of the Department of Correction authorized by the Commissioner of Correction to make
arrests in a correctional institution or facility, any investigator in the investigations
unit of the office of the State Treasurer, any special agent of the federal government
authorized to enforce the provisions of Title 21 of the United States Code, or a
member of a law enforcement unit of the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe or the
Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut created and governed by a memorandum
of agreement under section 47-65c¢ who is certified as a police officer by the Police
Officer Standards and Training Council pursuant to sections 7-294a to 7-294e,
inclusive.” Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-3(9).

d. Real Property means the land and all temporary and permanent structures
comprising the Bethany Public School District's (District) elementary school and
administrative office building. Real property includes, but is not limited to, the
following: classrooms, hallways, storage facilities, gymnasiums, fields and parking lots.

e.  School-Sponsored Activity means “any activity sponsored, recognized or authorized
by a board of education and includes activities conducted on or off school property.”
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-233a(h).

Prohibition of Deadly Weapons and Firearms

In accordance with Connecticut General Statutes § 29-28(e) and § 53a-217b, the possession
and/or use of a deadly weapon or firearm on the real property of the school or the
District’s administrative office building or at a school-sponsored activity, is prohibited, even
if the person possessing the deadly weapon or firearm has a permit for such item.

Peace Officer Exception

A peace officer engaged in the performance of his/her official duties who is in lawful
possession of a deadly weapon or firearm may bring such items on the real property of the
school or administrative office building in this District, or to a school-sponsored activity.



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1600(b)

IV. Other Exceptions
Persons in lawful possession of a deadly weapon or firearm may possess such item on the
real property of the school or the District’s administrative office building or to a school-
sponsored activity if:

a.

The person brings the deadly weapon or firearm on the real property of the school or
administrative office building or to a school-sponsored activity for use in a program
approved by school officials. In such case, the person must give school officials
notice of his/her intention to bring such item, and the person must receive prior
written permission from school officials.

The person possesses the deadly weapon or firearm on the real property of the school
or administrative office building or at a school-sponsored activity pursuant to a written
agreement with school officials or a written agreement between such person's
employer and school officials.

V. Consequences

a.

Legal Reference:

Policy adopted:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Unless subject to one of the exceptions listed above, any person who possesses a
deadly weapon or firearm on the real property of the District, or administrative office
building, or at a school-sponsored activity, whether or not the person is lawfully
permitted to carry such deadly weapon or firearm, will be reported to the local police
authorities once school officials become aware of its possession.

A student who possesses and/or uses any deadly weapon or firearm on school
property in violation of this policy shall be disciplined in accordance with the Board
of Education Student Discipline Policy.

The Board of Education reserves the right to forbid anyone caught possessinga deadly
weapon or firearm on the real property of its school building or administrative office
building, or at a school-sponsored activity, from using any and all school facilities.

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-233a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-244a
Connecticut General Statutes § 29-28(e)
Connecticut General Statutes § 47-65c¢
Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-3
Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-217b

September 9, 1998
October 7, 2015
November 9, 2016
April 8, 2020



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1600(a)

Recommended Revisions

Possession of Deadly Weapons or Firearms

L

IIL

Definitions:

a.

Deadly Weapon means "any weapon, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a shot may be
discharged, or a switchblade knife, gravity knife, billy, blackjack, bludgeon, or metal knuckles.”
Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-3(6).

Firearm means "any sawed-off shotgun, machine gun, rifle, shotgun, pistol, revolver, or other
weapon, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a shot may be discharged." Connecticut
General Statutes § 53a-3(19).

Peace Officer means “a member of the Division of State Police within the Department of
Emergency Services and Public Protection or an organized local police department, a chief
inspector or inspector in the Division of Criminal Justice, a state marshal while exercising
authority granted under any provision of the general statutes, a judicial marshal in the
performance of the duties of a judicial marshal, a conservation officer or special conservation
officer, as defined in section 26-5, a constable who performs criminal law enforcement duties,
a special policeman appointed under sections 29-18, 29-18a or 29-19, an adult probation
officer, an official of the Department of Correction authorized by the Commissioner of
Correction to make arrests in a correctional institution or facility, any investigator in the
investigations unit of the office of the State Treasurer, any special agent of the federal
government authorized to enforce the provisions of Title 21 of the United States Code, or a
member of a law enforcement unit of the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe or the Mohegan Tribe of
Indians of Connecticut created and governed by a memorandum of agreement under section
47-65c who is certified as a police officer by the Police Officer Standards and Training Council
pursuant to sections 7-294a to 7-294e, inclusive.” Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-3(9).

Real Property means the land and all temporary and permanent structures comprising the
Bethany Public School District's (District) elementary school and administrative office
building. Real property includes, but is not limited to, the following: classrooms, hallways,
storage facilities, gymnasiums, fields and parking lots.

School-Sponsored Activity means “any activity sponsored, recognized or authorized by a
board of education and includes activities conducted on or off school property.” Connecticut
General Statutes § 10-233a(h).

Prohibition of Deadly Weapons and Firearms

in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes § 29-28(e) and § 53a-217b, the possession and/or
use of a deadly weapon or firearm on the real property of the school or the District’s administrative
office building, on school transportation, or at a school-sponsored activity, is prohibited, even if the
person possessing the deadly weapon or firearm has a permit for such item.

Peace Officer Exception

A peace officer engaged in the performance of his/her the individuals official duties who is in lawful
possession of a deadly weapon or firearm may bring such items on the real property of the school
or administrative office building in this the District, on school transportation, or to a school-
sponsored activity.



COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1600(b)

IV.  Other Exceptions

Persons in lawful possession of a deadly weapon or firearm may possess such item on the real

property of the school or the District’s administrative office building, on school transportation, or

to a school-sponsored activity if:

a. The person brings the deadly weapon or firearm on the real property of the school or
administrative office building, on school transportation, or to a school-sponsored activity for
use in a program approved by school officials. In such case, the person must give school officials
notice of his/her the individuals intention to bring such item, and the person must receive prior
written permission from school officials.

b. The person possesses the deadly weapon or firearm on the real property of the school or
administrative office building, on school transportation, or at a school-sponsored activity
pursuant to a written agreement with school officials or a written agreement between such
person's employer and school officials.

V. Consequences

a. Unless subject to one of the exceptions listed above, any person who possesses a deadly
weapon or firearm on the real property of the District, or administrative office building, on
school transportation, or at a school-sponsored activity, whether or not the person is lawfully
permitted to carry such deadly weapon or firearm, will be reported to the local police
authorities once school officials become aware of its possession.

b. A student who possesses and/or uses any deadly weapon or firearm on school the real
property of the school, or administrative office building, on school transportation, or at a
school-sponsored activity in violation of this policy shall be disciplined in accordance with the
Bethany Board of Education (Board) Student Discipline Policy.

c. The Board efEducation reserves the right to forbid anyone caught possessing a deadly weapon
or firearm on the real property of its school building, on school transportation, or
administrative office building, or at a school-sponsored activity, from using any and all school
facilities.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-233a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-244a
Connecticut General Statutes § 29-28(e)
. Ut G IS §47-65
Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-3
Connecticut General Statutes § 53a-217b

Policy adopted: September 9, 1998

Policy revised: October 7, 2015

Policy revised: November 9, 2016

Policy revised: April 8,2020

Policy revised:

Source: Shipman



ADMINISTRATION 2130

Job Descriptions

All employees of the Bethany Public School District (District) are subject to the policies of the Board of
Education, applicable laws, and current employee agreements.

The Superintendent of Schools shall develop job descriptions for school District employees which shall
include at a minimum:

1
2
3.
4

Job title.
General statement of duties and listing of specific responsibilities.
To whom the employee is directly responsible.

Education or training required.

Job descriptions for all employees shall be provided to employees by the Superintendent and copies
maintained on the District website.

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: March 9, 2016
Policy revised: December 12, 2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



ADMINISTRATION 2130

Recommended Revisions
Job Descriptions

All employees of the Bethany Public School District (District) are subject to the policies of the Bethany
Board of Education, applicable laws, and current employee agreements.

The Superintendent ef-Sehools or designee shall develop job descriptions for sehoel District employees
which shall include at a minimum:

Job title.

General statement of duties and listing of specific responsibilities.

To whom the employee is directly responsible.

Education or training required.

A A

Wage range.

Job descriptions for all employees shall be provided to employees by the Superintendent or designee
and-copiesmaintained on the District website.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 21-30

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: March 9, 2016
Policy revised: December 12, 2018
Policy revised:

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



ADMINISTRATION 2400(a)

Evaluation of the Superintendent

The evaluation process for the Superintendent of Schools shall be collaborative, goal oriented and offer
numerous opportunities for focused and targeted feedback from the Board of Education to the
Superintendent of Schools regarding his/her job performance. It is the Board's belief that this
collaborative and candid approach to evaluation will improve Board of Education and Superintendent
communications and relationships, and most importantly, will enhance the overall success of the
District.

While the Board of Education and Superintendent (Leadership Team) have different roles and
responsibilities, their work must complement each other. Ultimately, all serve to advance the goals and
objectives of their community for public education and, most importantly, studentlearning. As the Board
of Education's Chief Executive Officer, Connecticut Education Law requires the Superintendent of
Schools' job performance is evaluated annually. Whether written or oral, the annual evaluation of the
District's Chief Executive Officer is one of the most important responsibilities of the Board of Education.

Recommended Evaluation Process

The formal evaluation should in no way preclude informal discussions between the Superintendent and
Board of Education as needed.

Beginning of the Year Evaluation of the Superintendent- July-November
Step 1: In a public meeting, the Board conducts its self-evaluation (July).

Step 2: The Leadership Team meets to discuss District goals and objectives. Any discussion of District
goals including the Board of Education’s Operational Performance Goals and the District’s Five
(5) Year Strategic Plan Goals, must be held in a public meeting. This structured conversation
is intended to serve as a goal/priority setting session for the District’s Leadership Team for
the upcoming school year (July).

Step 3: A meeting should be scheduled by the Board of Education between the Superintendent and
the Board, according to Board of Education policy and Superintendent’s contract in Executive
Session, unless the Superintendent exercises his/her statutory right to require that such
discussion is held in a public meeting. The purpose of this meeting is to share and discuss the
Board’s draft evaluation of the Superintendent’s performance and serves as a final opportunity
for candid discussion between the Board and the Superintendent prior to the completion of a
formal performance evaluation (July).

Step 4: In Executive Session, the Board has an opportunity to discuss with the Superintendent his/her
performance goals for the upcoming school year. Some of these will have been reflected in the
most recent evaluation of the Superintendent’s performance review (July).

Step5: The Superintendent’s formal performance evaluation is completed and presented either
verbally or in writing to the Superintendent of Schools by a representative(s) of the Board. It
is important to note that if the Board’s performance evaluation of the Superintendent is in
writing, it is a public document and subject to the Freedom of Information Act. Any written
copy of the Superintendent’s performance evaluation must also be placed in the
Superintendent’s official personnel file (August).

Step 6: Ina public meeting, the Board adopts their Board of Education Operational Performance Goals
(September/October).

Step 7: In Executive Session, the Superintendent shares his/her finalized performance goals for the
upcoming school year with the Board (October /November).

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



ADMINISTRATION 2400(b)

Mid-Year Meeting - December-February

Step 1:

Step 2:

In a public meeting, the Board informally reviews its own performance in light of previously
adopted goals.

In Executive Session, it is recommended that the Board provide targeted informal feedback to
the Superintendent about his/her effectiveness on the previously established goals and
objectives.

These mid-year sessions provide the Leadership Team with an opportunity to identify and strategize
about new and/or unexpected challenges. This level of team collaboration allows all parties to be
contributing members of a fluid, responsive and strategic team.

End of the Year Evaluation of the Superintendent - March-June

Step 1:

Step 2:

Step 3:

The Superintendent and Board Chair meet to discuss the Superintendent’s evaluation and
timeline (April/May).

The Superintendent shares a self-evaluation with the Board addressing the progress and
effectiveness of his/her performance goals. This self-assessment may be supplemented by
submitting documentation as a formal narrative, portfolio or some other mutually agreed
upon format, with the understanding that any such written documentation regarding the
Superintendent’s job performance should aid the Board in completing a comprehensive and
fair evaluation of the Superintendent (May/June).

The Board conducts the evaluation of the Superintendent according to the Board of Education
policy in Executive Session unless the Superintendent exercises his/her statutory right to
require that such discussion is held in a public meeting. It is recommended that there be no
prior sharing of written performance evaluation commentary (hard copy or electronic) among
Board of Education members prior to the Executive Session (June).

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-157(a)

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220
Freedom of Information Act §§ 1-200 to 1-241

Policy adopted: May 10, 2017
Policy reviewed: October 1, 2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



APPENDIX A 2400(c)

Superintendent's Leadership Performance Areas and Specific Areas of Responsibility

Successful Superintendents of Schools are visionary CEOs who lead dynamic enterprises in a shifting
climate of policy, politics, society, economics, and law. Balancing and managing national reform and
accountability initiatives against local circumstances, they create the conditions that drive their
district's leadership, quality of instruction, and student achievement. Research has shown that the
nation's most successful Superintendents possess highly developed leadership, vision, and strategic
‘thinking skills and that these skills, combined influence student achievement.

The following framework may help guide the Superintendent’s evaluation and development. This
‘framework may be changed to reflect continuing developments that shape the Superintendent’s areas
of responsibility.

1. Educational Leadership

Grounded in relationships, the Superintendent enlists and guides school district stakeholders
toward the district's educational goals, demonstrating an intense focus on continuous district
improvement.

Educational Leadership will include, but not be limited to, the following areas: vision, culture,
instructional materials, curriculum, hiring, training, performance, issue management,
measurable results, presence, and personal development.

II. Organizational Management

Effective facilitation of the day-to-day operations of the school district and its programs requires
leadership in organizational management. This includes establishing systems and appropriate
delegation of tasks.

Organizational Management will include, but not be limited to, the following areas: budget
process, budget development, budget management, contract negotiation, grants & excess costs,
expense reporting, day-to-day management, facilities planning, facilities maintenance, school
environment safety, and health.

IlII. Community and Board of Education Relations

Community and Board of Education relations are critical to the success of the Superintendent
and the District.

Community and Board of Education Relations will include, but not be limited to, the following
areas: proactive Board communication, responsive Board communication, policy, commitment
to Board priorities, information and advice, Board collaboration, proactive community
communication, responsive community communication, community collaboration, follow
through, empowerment and support.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



APPENDIX A 2400(d)

V.

Personal and Professional Qualities

Personal and professional qualities and relationships are critical to the effectiveness of leaders
and managers. The Superintendent will maintain the highest standards of personal integrity,
professionalism, and leadership.

Personal and Professional Qualities will include, but not be limited to, the following areas:

personal integrity, professionalism, personal interaction skills, communication style, work ethic,
transparency and commitment to excellence.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



ADMINISTRATION 2400(a)

Recommended Revisions
Evaluation of the Superintendent

The evaluation process for the Superintendent efSechools shall be collaborative, goal-oriented, and offer
numerous opportunities for focused and targeted feedback from the Bethany Board of Education
(Board) to the Superintendent efSchoeols regarding his/her job performance. It is the Board's belief that
this collaborative and candid approach to evaluation will improve Board ef-Education and
Superintendent communications and relationships, and most importantly, will enhance the overall
success of the Bethany Public School District (District).

While the Board ef-Education and Superintendent (Leadership Team) have different roles and
responsibilities, their work must complement each other. Ultimately, all serve to advance the goals and
objectives of their community for public education and, most importantly, student learning. As the Board
of Edueation's Chief Executive Officer {CEQ), Connecticut Education Law requires the Superintendentof
Schools’ Superintendent’s job performance is evaluated annually. Whether written or oral, the annual
evaluation of the District's Chief Executive Officer is one of the most important responsibilities of the
Board ef Education.

Recommended Evaluation Process

The formal evaluation should in no way preclude informal discussions between the Superintendent and
Board ef Education as needed.

Beginning of the Year Evaluation of the Superintendent- July-November
Stepl: Ina public meeting, the Board conducts its self-evaluation and goal setting (July).

Step 2: The Leadership Team meets to discuss District goals and objectives. Any discussion of District
goals including the Board ef Education’s Operational Performance Goals and the District’s Eive
{5)}-Year Strategic Plan Goals, must be held in a public meeting. This structured conversation
is intended to serve as a goal/priority setting session for the District’s Leadership Team for
the upcoming school year (July).

Step 3: A meeting should be scheduled by the Board ef Education between the Superintendent and
the Board, according to Board efEducation policy and Superintendent’s contract in Executive
Session, unless the Superintendent exercises hisfher the statutory right to require that such
discussion is held in a public meeting. The purpose of this meeting is to share and discuss the
Board'’s draft evaluation of the Superintendent’s performance and serves as a final opportunity
for candid discussion between the Board and the Superintendent prior to the completion of a
formal performance evaluation (July).

Step4: In Executive Session, the Board has an opportunity to discuss the Superintendent's
performance goals for the upcoming school vear with the Superintendent histher
performance-goalsforthe upcomingschoolyear. Some of these will have been reflected in the

most recent evaluation of the Superintendent’s performance review (July).

Step 5: The Superintendent’s formal performance evaluation is completed and presented either
verbally or in writing to the Superintendent ef-Scheels by a representative(s) of the Board. It
is important to note that if the Board’s performance evaluation of the Superintendent is in
writing, it is a public document and subject to the Freedom of Information Act. Any written
copy of the Superintendent's performance evaluation must also be placed in the
Superintendent’s official personnel file (August).

Step 6: Inapublic meeting, the Board adopts their Board ef Educatien Operational Performanee Goals
(September/October).

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Step 7: In Executive Session, the Superintendent shares his/her finalized the final performance goals’
for the upcoming school year with the Board (October/November).

Mid-Year Meeting - December-February

Step 1: In a public meeting, the Board informally reviews its own performance in light of previously
adopted goals.

Step 2: In Executive Session, it is recommended that the Board provide targeted informal feedback to

the Superintendent about kis/her the effectiveness on the previously established goals and
objectives.

These mid-year sessions provide the Leadership Team with an opportunity to identify and strategize
about new and/or unexpected challenges. This level of team collaboration allows all parties to be
contributing members of a fluid, responsive and strategic team.

End of the Year Evaluation of the Superintendent - March-June

Step 1: The Superintendent and Board Chair meet to discuss the Superintendent’s evaluation and
timeline (April/May).

Step 2: The Superintendent shares a self-evaluation with the Board addressing the progress and
effectiveness of his/her the performance goals. This self-assessment may be supplemented by
submitting documentation as a formal narrative, portfolio or some other mutually agreed
upon format, with the understanding that any such written documentation regarding the
Superintendent’s job performance should aid the Board in completing a comprehensive and
fair evaluation of the Superintendent (May/June).

Step 3: The Board conducts the evaluation of the Superintendent according to the Board efEducation
policy in Executive Session unless the Superintendent exercises his/her the statutory right to
require that such discussion is held in a public meeting. It is recommended that there be no
prior sharing of written performance evaluation commentary (hard copy or electronic) among
Board ef Educatior members prior to the Executive Session (June).

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-157(a)
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220
Freedom of Information Act §§ 1-200 to 1-241

Policy adopted: May 10, 2017
Policy reviewed: October 1, 2018
Policy revised.

Source: CABE/CAPSS/BPSD

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



»

- APPENDIX A 2400(c)

Superintendent's Leadership Performance Areas and Specific Areas of Responsibility

Successful Superintendents of Schools are visionary CEOs who lead dynamic enterprises in a shifting
climate of policy, politics, society, economics, and law. Balancing and managing national reform and
accountability initiatives against local circumstances, they create the conditions that drive their
district's leadership, quality of instruction, and student achievement. Research has shown that the
nation's most successful Superintendents possess highly developed leadership, vision, and strategic
thinking skills and that these skills, combined influence student achievement.

The following framework may help guide the Superintendent’s evaluation and development. This
framework may be changed to reflect continuing developments that shape the Superintendent’s areas
of responsibility.

I. Educational Leadership

mpFevement—The_Sg_p_ermLendem mu dmngns&nate m&mnami Jﬂm:mng in educangn guahj;x*
with specific efforts and results.

Educational Leadership will include, but not be limited to, the following areas: vision, culture,
instructional materials, curriculum, hiring, training, performance, issue management,
measurable results, presence, and personal development.

II. Organizational Management

.I_llg Sgperntwﬂlﬁffﬁgtwﬂbl

District’s finances and operations.

Organizational Management will include, but not be limited to, the following areas: budget
process, budget development, budget management, contract negotiation, grants & excess cost,
expense reporting, day-to-day management, facilities planning, facilities maintenance, school
environment safety, and health.

III. Community and Board of Education Relations

ané—@he—&s!met— Ihg.iupgrmmndem ymll fpsxgnan gffeﬂme r_elangnshu;ﬂuh the_BQarQ
including communication, collaboration, and commitment to priorities. Focus on a culture of
effective, collaborative, mutually supportive relationships with the parent community.

Community and Board of Education Relations will include, but not be limited to, the following
areas: proactive Board communication, responsive Board communication, policy, commitment
to Board priorities, information, and advice, Board collaboration, proactive community
communication, responsive community communication, community collaboration, and follow-

through; empov-erment, and suppott.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



APPENDIX A 2400(d)’

IV.

Personal and Professional Qualities

and-managers: The Superintendent will maintain the highest sta
professionalism, and leadership.

ndards of personal integrity,
Personal and Professional Qualities will include, but not be limited to, the following areas:

personal integrity, professionalism, personal interaction skills, communication style, work ethic,
transparency, and commitment to excellence.

Policy 2400 - Appendix A - Revised

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut

4



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(a)

Data-Based Information and Management Systems

Student Data Protection and Privacy/Cloud-Based Issues

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) may, pursuant to this policy, enter into a contract with a third
party for either or both of the following purposes:

1.

To provide services, including Cloud-based services, for the digital storage, management, and
retrieval of student records.

To provide digital educational software that authorizes a third-party provider of digital
educational software to access, store, and use student records in accordance with the
contractual provisions listed below.

The Board, when entering into a contract with a contractor for purposes listed above, shall ensure the
contract includes, but is not limited to the following:

1.

A statement that student records, student information, and student-generated content
continue to be the property of and under the control ofthe Board. (Theyare notthe property
of, or under the control of a software or electronic services contractor.)

A description of the means by which the Board may request the deletion of any student
information, student records or student-generated content in the possession of the contractor
that is not (a) otherwise prohibited from deletion or required to be retained under state or
federal law, or (b) stored as a copy of a disaster recovery storage system and that is (i)
inaccessible to the public, and (ii) unable to be used in the normal course of business by the
contractor, provided the Board of Education may request the deletion of any such student
information, student records or student-generated content if such copy has been used by the
operator to repopulate data following a disaster recovery.

A statement that the contractor will not use student information, student records, or student-
generated content for any purposes except those the contract authorizes.

A description of the procedures by which a student, parent/legal guardian of a student may
review personally identifiable information (PII) contained in the student's records, student
information or student-generated content and correct erroneous information if any in such
student material.

A statement that the contractor shall take actions designed to ensure the security and
confidentiality of student records record, student information, and student-generated content.

A description of the procedures that a contractor will follow for notifying the Board, in
compliance with Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-234dd, when there has been an
unauthorized release, disclosure or acquisition of student information, student records or
student-generated content.

A statement that a student's records, student information, or student-generated content shall
not be retained or available to the contractor upon expiration of the contract between the
contractor and the Board of Education except a student, parent or legal guardian of a student
may choose to independently establish or maintain an electronic account with the contractor
after the expiration of such contract for the purpose of storing student-generated content.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(b)

8.  Astatement that the contractor and the Board shall ensure compliance with the federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. 1232g.

9.  Astatement that Connecticut laws shall govern the rights and duties of the contractor and the
Board.

10. A statement that if any provision of the contract or the application of the contract is held
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity does not affect other provisions of
the contract which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application.

11. A prohibition against the contractor using personally identifiable information contained in
student records to engage in advertising or for any other purposes other than those authorized
pursuant to the contract.

Any provision of a contract or a terms of service agreement addendum entered into between a
contractor and the Board, that conflicts with the provisions listed above shall be void. Moreover, a
contract is void if it lacks any of the above provisions. The Superintendent or his/her designee will give
the contractor reasonable notice to amend the contract of a terms of service agreement addendum to
include the missing provisions.

Any contract or a terms of service agreement addendum that does not include the provisions listed
above shall be void, provided the Superintendent of his/her designee has given reasonable notice to the
contractor and the contractor has failed within a reasonable time to amend the contract or the terms of
service agreement addendum to include the required provisions.

The Superintendent or his/her designee shall maintain and update, as necessary, a website with
information relating to all contracts entered into pursuant to this policy. Not later than five (5) business
days after executing a contract pursuant to this policy, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall post
notice of such contract on the District’s website. The notice shall include the contract and:

1.  state that the contract has been executed and the date that such contract was executed;
2.  provide a brief description of the contract and the purpose of the contract; and
3. state what student information, student records or student-generated content may be

collected as a result of the contract.

On or before September 1st annually, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall electronically notify
students and the parents/guardians of students of the address of the Internet website described in this

policy.

The Superintendent or his/her designee and a contractor may include in any contract executed pursuant
to this policy, a student data privacy terms of service agreement addendum, previously described, to
satisfy the requirements of this policy.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(c)

The Board of Education is not required to enter into a contract pursuant to this policy if the use of an
Internet website, online service or mobile application operated by a consultant or an operator is unique
and necessary to implement a child’s individualized education program or plan pursuant to Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended from time to time, and such Internet website, online
service or mobile application is unable to comply with the provisions of this policy, provided:

1. such Internet website, online service or mobile application complies with the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 USC 1232g, as amended from time to time, and the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191, as amended from
time to time.

2. The Board of Education can provide evidence that it has made a reasonable effort to:

a. enter into a contract with such consultant or operator to use such Internet website,
online service or mobile application, and

b. find an equivalent Internet website, online service or mobile application operated by a
consultant or an operator that complies with the provisions of this section.

3. The consultant or operator complies with the provisions of Section 10-234cc, as amended for
such use, and

4. The parent/legal guardian of such child and, in the case of a child with an individualized
education program, a member of the planning and placement team, sign an agreement that

a. Acknowledges such parent/legal guardian is aware that such Internet website, online
service or mobile application is unable to comply with the provisions of this policy, and

b. Authorizes the use of such Internet website, online service or mobile application

The Superintendent or his/her designee shall, upon request of a child’s parent/legal guardian, provide
the evidence described above to such parent/legal guardian.

The Board expects that an operator shall implement and maintain security procedures and practices
that meet or exceed industry standards and that are designed to protect student information, student
records, and student-generated content from unauthorized access, destruction use, modification, and
disclosure; and delete any student information, student records or student-generated content within a
reasonable amount of time if a student, parent/guardian or Board requests deletion of such student
information, student records or student-generated content unless:

1. State or federal law prohibits such deletion or otherwise requires the retention of such student
information, student records or student-generated content, or

2. A copy of such student information, student records or student-generated content is in the
possession of the operator as part of a disaster recovery storage system and is inaccessible to
the public and unable to be used in the normal course of business by the operator, provided such
student, parent/legal guardian of a student or the Board may request the deletion of any such
student information, student records or student-generated content if such copy is used by the
operator to repopulate accessible data following a disaster recovery.

The Superintendent or his/her designee will utilize the written guidance developed by the Department
of Education in consultation with the Commission for Educational Technology concerning the
implementation of FERPA and the laws relating to student data privacy. Such written guidance includes
a plain language explanation of how such student data privacy laws are to be implemented, information
about the uniform student data privacy terms-of-service agreement addendum, and how such
addendum may be incorporated into contracts executed pursuant to Section 10-243bb, as amended.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(d)

Notice of Breach of Security/Data Breacher

Upon notice of a breach of security by a contractor, the Board shall, not later than two (2) business days
after receipt of such notice, notify the students and the parents or legal guardians of the students whose
student information, student records, or student-generated content was involved in such breach. The
Superintendent or his/her designee shall also, as required, post notice of the breach on its website.

Upon the discovery of a breach of security that results in the unauthorized release of student
information, excluding directory information, the contract shall contain the provision that the
contractor must notify the Board of such breach without unreasonable delay, and in no case later than
thirty (30) days from the discovery of the breach.

Upon the discovery of a breach of security that results in the unauthorized release of directory
information, student records, or student-generated content, the contract shall contain the provision that
the contractor must notify the Superintendent or his/her designee without unreasonable delay and in
no case later than sixty (60) days from the discovery of the breach.

Definitions

1. Contractor means an operator or consultant that is in possession of or has access to student
information, student records or student-generated content as a result of a contract with a
local Board of Education.

2. Operator means the operator of an Internet website, online service, online application (app)
or mobile application with actual knowledge that such Internet website, service, or mobile
application is used primarily for school purposes and was designed and marketed for school
purposes and who collects, maintains or uses student information.

3. Consultant means a professional who provides non-instructional services, including
administrative, planning, analytical, statistical, or research services to a board of education
under a contract.

4.  Student means a Connecticut resident enrolled in a preschool program participating in the
state-wide public school information system, pursuant to Section 10-10a of the Connecticut
General Statutes, or enrolled in grades K to 12, inclusive, in a public school, or receiving
special education and related services under an individualized education program, or
otherwise the responsibility of the Board.

5. Deidentified information means information that has been altered to prevent the
identification of an individual student.

Eligible student means a student who has reached eighteen (18) years of age.

Student-generated content means materials created by a student, including, but not limited
to, essays, research reports, portfolios, creative writing, music or other audio files, or
photographs. Student-generated content does not include student responses to a standardized
assessment.

8. Student records mean:

any information directly related to a student that is maintained by the School District: the
State Board of Education or the Department of Education or

any information acquired from a student through the use of educational software assigned
to the student by a teacher or other District employee.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(e)

10.

11.

12.

Student records do not mean any of the following:

a. Deidentified information, allowed under the contract to be used by the contractor to
improve educational products for adaptive learning purposes and for customizing
student learning.

b. Deidentified information, used to demonstrate the effectiveness of the contractor’s
products in the marketing of such products.

c. Deidentified information, used for the development and improvement of the
contractor’s products and services.

Online service includes Cloud computing services, which must comply with this policy if
they otherwise meet the definition of an operator.

Student information is personally identifiable information regarding a student that in any
media or format that is not publicly available that meets any of the following:

a. Is created or provided by a student, or the student's parent or legal guardian, by using
an operators’ website, online service, or mobile application (app) for school purposes.

b. Is created or provided by an employee or agent of the Board of Education, to an
operator for school purposes.

c. Is gathered by an operator through the operation of the operator’s Internet website,
online service, or mobile application (app) and identifies a student, including, but not
limited to, information in the student's educational record or email account, first and
last name, home address, telephone number, email address, or other information that
allows physical or online contact, discipline records, test results, special education
data, juvenile dependency records, grades, evaluations, criminal records, medical
records, health records, social security number, biometric information, disabilities,
socioeconomic information, food purchases, political affiliations, religious
information, text messages, documents, student identifiers, search activity, photos,
voice recordings, or behavioral assessments.

School purposes means purposes that customarily take place at the direction of a teacher,
or school District or aid in the administration of school activities, including, but not limited
to, instruction in the classroom, administrative activities, and collaboration between
students, school personnel, or parents or legal guardians.

Targeted advertising means presenting an advertisement to a student where the selection
of the advertisement is based on student information, student records or student-generated
content or inferred from the usage of the operator's Internet website, online service or mobile
application by such student. It does not include any advertising to a student on a website
that the student accesses at the time or in response to a student's response or request for
information or feedback.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(f)

The Board, through this policy, places restrictions on an "operator"” as defined in this policy. An operator
shall not knowingly engage in any of the following activities with respect to their Internet website, online
service, or mobile application:

1. Engage in targeted advertising on the operator's Internet website, online service, or mobile
application:

2.  Use student information to create a profile of a student for purposes other than the
furtherance of school purposes.

3. Sell student information, unless the sale is part of the purchase, merger, or acquisition of an
operator by a successor operator and the operator and the successor operator continue to be
subject to the provisions of this policy regarding student information.

4. Disclose student information unless the disclosure is made:

a. in furtherance of school purposes of the Internet website, online service, or online
application, provided the recipient of the student information uses such student
information to improve the operability and functionality of the Internet website, online
service or mobile application and complies with this policy;

b. to ensure compliance with federal or state law;
¢. in response to a judicial order;

d. to protect the safety of users or others or the security of the Internet website, online
service or mobile application; or

e. to an entity hired by the operator to provide services for the operator’s Internet website,
online service or mobile application provided the operator contractually:

i.  prohibits the entity from using student information for any purpose other than
providing the contracted service to, or on behalf of, the operator;

ii.  prohibits the entity from disclosing student information provided by the
operator to subsequent third parties; and

iii.  requires the service provider comply with this policy.
The Board recognizes that an operator may:

1. Use student information

a. tomaintain, support, evaluate or diagnose the operator's Internet website, online service
or mobile application; or

b. for adaptive learning purposes or customized student learning,
2. Usede-identified student information

a. to develop or improve the operator's Internet website, online service or mobile
application (app), or other Internet websites, online services or mobile applications
owned by the operator; or

b. to demonstrate or market the effectiveness of the operator's Internet website, online
service or mobile application.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(g)

3.

Share aggregated de-identified student information for the improvement and development of
Internet websites, online services or mobile applications designed for school purposes.

Nothing in this policy shall be construed to:

1.

limit the ability of a law enforcement agency to obtain student information from an operator
as authorized by law or pursuant to a court order;

limit the ability of a student or the parent or legal guardian of a student to download, transfer
or otherwise save or maintain student information;

impose a duty upon a provider of an interactive computer service to ensure compliance with
this section by third-party information content providers, as defined in 47 US.C. 230, as
amended from time to time;

impose a duty upon a seller or provider of online services or mobile applications to ensure
compliance with this policy with regard to such online services or mobile applications;

limit an Internet service provider from providing a student, parent or legal guardian of a
student or local Board of Education with the ability to connect to the Internet;

prohibit an operator from advertising other Internet websites, online services or mobile
applications that are used for school purposes to parents or legal guardians of students
provided such advertising does not result from the operator’'s use of student information; or

apply to Internet websites, online services or mobile applications that are designed and
marketed for use by individuals generally, even if the account credentials created for an
operator's Internet website, online service or mobile application may be used to access
Internet websites, online services or mobile applications that are designed and marketed for
school purposes.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 1-19(b)(11)

Connecticut General Statutes § 7-109

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15b

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-209

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-234aa

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-234bb, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-234cc

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-234dd, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 11-8a

Connecticut General Statutes § 11-8b

Connecticut General Statutes § 46b-56(e)

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(h)

Policy adopted:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Connecticut Public Records Administration Schedule V - Disposition of
Education Records (Revised 1983).

Public Act 16-189
Public Act 17-200
Public Act 18-125

Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (Section 438 of the
General Education Provisions Act, as amended, added by Section 513 of P.L. 93-
568, codified at 20 U.S.C. 1232g:)

Department of Education 34 C.F.R. Part 99 (May 9, 1980 45 FR 30802) regs.
implementing FERPA enacted as part of 438 of General Education Provisions Act
(20 U.S.C. 1232g) parent and student privacy and other rights with respect to
educational records, as amended 11/21/96.

Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA) 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2014)

Children's Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) 15 U.S.C. §§ 6501 et seq.
(2014)

April 13,2016
January 11, 2017
December 13,2017
December 12,2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



" BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(a)

Recommended Revisions

Data-Based Information and Management Systems

Student Data Protection and Privacy/Cloud-Based Issues

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) may, pursuant to this policy, enter into a contract with a third
party for either or both of the following purposes:

1.

To provide services, including Cloud-based services, for the digital storage, management, and
retrieval of student records.

To provide digital educational software that authorizes a third-party provider of digital
educational software to access, store, and use student records in accordance with the
contractual provisions listed below.

The Board, when entering into a contract with a contractor for purposes listed above, shall ensure the
contract includes, but is not limited to the following:

1.

A statement that student records, student information, and student-generated content
continue to be the property of and under the control of the Board. (They are not the property
of, or under the control of a software or electronic services contractor.)

A description of the means by which the Board may request the deletion of any student
information, student records, or student-generated content in the possession of the contractor
that is not a) otherwise prohibited from deletion or required to be retained under state or
federal law, or b) stored as a copy of a disaster recovery storage system and that is i)
inaccessible to the public, and ii) unable to be used in the normal course of business by the
contractor, provided the Board efEducation may request the deletion of any such student
information, student records or student-generated content if such copy has been used by the
operator to repopulate data following a disaster recovery.

A statement that the contractor will not use student information, student records, or student-
generated content for any purposes except those the contract authorizes.

A description of the procedures by which a student, parent/legal guardian of a student may
review personally identifiable information (PII) contained in the student's records, student
information, or student-generated content and correct erroneous information if any in such
student material.

A statement that the contractor shall take actions designed to ensure the security and
confidentiality of student records record, student information, and student-generated content.

A description of the procedures that a contractor will follow for notifying the Board, in

-compliance with Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-234dd, when there has been an

unauthorized release, disclosure, or acquisition of student information, student records, or
student-generated content.

A statement that a student's records, student information, or student-generated content shall
not be retained or available to the contractor upon expiration of the contract between the
contractor and the Board ef Educatien except a student, parent, or legal guardian of a student
may choose to independently establish or maintain an electronic account with the contractor
after the expiration of such contract for the purpose of storing student-generated content.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13 (bj

8.  Astatement that the contractor and the Board shall ensure compliance with the federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. 1232g (FERPA).

9.  Astatement that Connecticut laws shall govern the rights and duties of the contractor and the
Board.

10. A statement that if any provision of the contract or the application of the contract is held
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity does not affect other provisions of
the contract which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application.

11. A prohibition against the contractor using personally identifiable information contained in
student records to engage in advertising or for any other purposes other than those authorized
pursuant to the contract.

Any provision of a contract or a terms of service agreement addendum entered into between a
contractor and the Board, that conflicts with the provisions listed above shall be void. Moreover, a
contract is void if it lacks any of the above provisions. The Superintendent or his/her designee will give
the contractor reasonable notice to amend the contract of a terms of service agreement addendum to
include the missing provisions.

Any contract or a terms of service agreement addendum that does not include the provisions listed
above shall be void provided the Superintendent ef his/her or designee has given reasonable notice to
the contractor and the contractor has failed within a reasonable time to amend the contract or the terms
of service agreement addendum to include the required provisions.

The Superintendent or hisfher designee shall maintain and update, as necessary, a website with
information relating to all contracts entered into pursuant to this policy. Not later than five (5) business
days after executing a contract pursuant to this policy, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall post
notice of such contract on the District’'s website. The notice shall include the contract and:

1.  state that the contract has been executed and the date that such contract was executed;
provide a brief description of the contract and the purpose of the contract; and
3. state what student information, student records or student-generated content may be

collected as a result of the contract.

On or before September 15t annually, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall electronically notify
students and the parents/guardians of students of the address of the Internet website described in this
policy.

The Superintendent or his/her designee and a contractor may include in any contract executed pursuant
to this policy, a student data privacy terms of service agreement addendum, previously described, to
satisfy the requirements of this policy.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



' BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(c)

The Board efEducation is not required to enter into a contract pursuant to this policy if the use of an
Internet website, online service, or mobile application operated by a consultant or an operator is unique
and necessary to lmplement achild’s individualized education program or plan pursuant to Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended from time to time, and such Internet website, online
service or mobile application is unable to comply with the provisions of this policy, provided:

1. such lnternet website, online service, or mobile application complies with the Fam%l—y
and the Health Insurance Portability and AccountablhtymAEbe 1996, Public Law 104-191, as
amended from time to time.

2. The Board efEdueatien can provide evidence that it has made a reasonable effort to:

a. enter into a contract with such consultant or operator to use such Internet website,
online service or mobile application, and

b. find an equivalent Internet website, online service, or mobile application operated by a
consultant or an operator that complies with the provisions of this section.

3. The consultant or operator complies with the provisions of Section 10-234cc, as amended for
such use, and

4. The parent/legal guardian of such child and, in the case of a child with an individualized
education program, a member of the planning and placement team, sign an agreement that

a. Acknowledges such parent/legal guardian is aware that such Internet website, online
service or mobile application is unable to comply with the provisions of this policy, and

b. Authorizes the use of such Internet website, online service or mobile application

The Superintendent or his/her designee shall, upon request of a child's parent/legal guardian, provide
the evidence described above to such parent/legal guardian.

The Board expects that an operator shall implement and maintain security procedures and practices
that meet or exceed industry standards and that are designed to protect student information, student
records, and student-generated content from unauthorized access, destruction use, modification, and
disclosure; and delete any student information, student records or student-generated content within a
reasonable amount of time if a student, parent/guardian or Board requests deletion of such student
information, student records or student-generated content unless:

1. State or federal law prohibits such deletion or otherwise requires the retention of such student
information, student records or student-generated content, or

2. A copy of such student information, student records, or student-generated content is in the
possession of the operator as part of a disaster recovery storage system and is inaccessible to
the public and unable to be used in the normal course of business by the operator, provided such
student, parent/legal guardian of a student or the Board may request the deletion of any such
student information, student records or student-generated content if such copy is used by the
operator to repopulate accessible data following a disaster recovery.

The Superintendent or his/her designee will utilize the written guidance developed by the Department
of Education in consultation with the Commission for Educational Technology concerning the
implementation of FERPA and the laws relating to student data privacy. Such written guidance includes
a plain language explanation of how such student data privacy laws are to be implemented, information
about the uniform student data privacy terms-of-service agreement addendum, and how such
addendum may be incorporated into contracts executed pursuant to Section 10-243bb, as amended.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13 (d)

Notice of Breach of Security/Data Breacher

Upon notice of a breach of security by a contractor, the Board shall, not later than two (2) business days
after receipt of such notice, notify the students and the parents or legal guardians of the students whose
student information, student records, or student-generated content was involved in such breach. The
Superintendent or his/her designee shall also, as required, post notice of the breach on its website.

Upon the discovery of a breach of security that results in the unauthorized release of student
information, excluding directory information, the contract shall contain the provision that the
contractor must notify the Board of such breach without unreasonable delay, and in no case later than
thirty (30) days from the discovery of the breach.

Upon the discovery of a breach of security that results in the unauthorized release of directory
information, student records, or student-generated content, the contract shall contain the provision that
the contractor must notify the Superintendent or his/her designee without unreasonable delay and in
no case later than sixty (60) days from the discovery of the breach.

Definitions

1. Contractor means an operator or consultant that is in possession of or has access to student
information, student records, or student-generated content as a result of a contract with a local
board of education.

2. Operator means the operator of an Internet website, online service, online application (app),
or mobile application with actual knowledge that such Internet website, service, or mobile
application is used primarily for school purposes and was designed and marketed for school
purposes and who collects, maintains or uses student information.

3. Consultant means a professional who provides non-instructional services, including

administrative, planning, analytical, statistical, or research services to a board of education
under a contract.

4.  Student means a Connecticut resident enrolled in a preschool program participating in the
state-wide public school information system, pursuant to Section 10-10a of the Connecticut
General Statutes, or enrolled in grades K to 12, inclusive, in a public school, or receiving special
education and related services under an individualized education program, or otherwise the
responsibility of the Board.

5. Deidentified information means information that has been altered to prevent the
identification of an individual student.

6.  Eligible student means a student who has reached eighteen (18) years of age.

Student-generated content means materials created by a student, including, but not limited
to, essays, research reports, portfolios, creative writing, music or other audio files, or
photographs. Student-generated content does not include student responses to a standardized
assessment.

8. Student records mean:

any information directly related to a student that is maintained by the Secheoel District, the
State Board of Education, or the Department of Education or any information acquired from
a student through the use of educational software assigned to the student by a teacher or
other District employee.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



| . " BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(e)

10.

11.

12.

Student records do not mean any of the following:

a. Deidentified information, allowed under the contract to be used by the contractor to
improve educational products for adaptive learning purposes and for customizing
student learning.

b. Deidentified information, used to demonstrate the effectiveness of the contractor’s
products in the marketing of such products.

c. Deidentified information, used for the development and improvement of the contractor’s
products and services.

Online service includes Cloud computing services, which must comply with this policy if they
otherwise meet the definition of an operator.

Student information is personally identifiable information regarding a student that in any
media or format that is not publicly available that meets any of the following:

a. Iscreated or provided by a student, or the student's parent or legal guardian, by using
an operators’ website, online service, or mobile application (app) for school purposes.

b. Iscreated or provided by an employee or agent of the Board efEdueation, to an operator
for school purposes.

c. Is gathered by an operator through the operation of the operator’s Internet website,
online service, or mobile application (app) and identifies a student, including, but not
limited to, information in the student's educational record or email account, first and last
name, home address, telephone number, email address, or other information that allows
physical or online contact, discipline records, test results, special education data, juvenile
dependency records, grades, evaluations, criminal records, medical records, health
records, social security number, biometric information, disabilities, socioeconomic
information, food purchases, political affiliations, religious information, text messages,
documents, student identifiers, search activity, photos, voice recordings, or behavioral
assessments.

School purposes means purposes that customarily take place at the direction of a teacher, or
school District or aid in the administration of school activities, including, but not limited to,
instruction in the classroom, administrative activities, and collaboration between students,
school personnel, or parents or legal guardians.

Targeted advertising means presenting an advertisement to a student where the selection of
the advertisement is based on student information, student records, or student-generated
content or inferred from the usage of the operator's Internet website, online service, or mobile
application by such student. It does not include any advertising to a student on a website that
the student accesses at the time or in response to a student's response or request for
information or feedback.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13 (t)"

The Board, through this policy, places restrictions on an "operator” as defined in this policy. An operator
shall not knowingly engage in any of the following activities with respect to their Internet website, online
service, or mobile application:

1.  Engage in targeted advertising on the operator's Internet website, online service, or mobile
application:

2. Usestudentinformation to create a profile of a student for purposes other than the furtherance
of school purposes.

3.  Sell student information, unless the sale is part of the purchase, merger, or acquisition of an
operator by a successor operator, and the operator and the successor operator continue to be
subject to the provisions of this policy regarding student information.

4, Disclose student information unless the disclosure is made:

a. in furtherance of school purposes of the Internet website, online service, or online
application, provided the recipient of the student information uses such student
information to improve the operability and functionality of the Internet website, online
service or mobile application and complies with this policy;

b. to ensure compliance with federal or state law;
¢. inresponse to ajudicial order;

d. to protect the safety of users or others or the security of the Internet website, online
service, or mobile application; or

e. toan entity hired by the operator to provide services for the operator’s Internet website,
online service or mobile application provided the operator contractually:

i.  prohibits the entity from using student information for any purpose other than
providing the contracted service to, or on behalf of, the operator;

ii.  prohibits the entity from disclosing student information provided by the
operator to subsequent third parties; and

iii.  requires the service provider comply with this policy.
The Board recognizes that an operator may:

1. Use student information

a. to maintain, support, evaluate or diagnose the operator's Internet website, online
service, or mobile application; or

b. for adaptive learning purposes or customized student learning.
2. Use de-identified student information

a. to develop or improve the operator's Internet website, online service or mobile
application (app), or other Internet websites, online services or mobile applications
owned by the operator; or

b. to demonstrate or market the effectiveness of the operator's Internet website, online
service, or mobile application.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



. " BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3520.13(g)

3.

Share aggregated de-identified student information for the improvement and development of
Internet websites, online services, or mobile applications designed for school purposes.

Nothing in this policy shall be construed to:

1.

limit the ability of a law enforcement agency to obtain student information from an operator
as authorized by law or pursuant to a court order;

limit the ability of a student or the parent or legal guardian of a student to download, transfer
or otherwisé save or maintain student information;

impose a duty upon a provider of an interactive computer service to ensure compliance with
this section by third-party information content providers, as defined in 47 U.S.C. 230, as
amended from time to time;

impose a duty upon a seller or provider of online services or mobile applications to ensure
compliance with this policy with regard to such online services or mobile applications;

limit an Internet service provider from providing a student, parent, or legal guardian of a
student or local board of education with the ability to connect to the Internet;

prohibit an operator from advertising other Internet websites, online services, or mobile
applications that are used for school purposes to parents or legal guardians of students
provided such advertising does not result from the operator’s use of student information; or

apply to Internet websites, online services, or mobile applications that are designed and
marketed for use by individuals generally, even if the account credentials created for an
operator's Internet website, online service, or mobile application may be used to access
Internet websites, online services, or mobile applications that are designed and marketed for
school purposes.

m sgthAzl‘ pu“r'pgsegfiﬁz—xj ;dtsclqse dmeﬂog mmmumm Ionany_pérsgh rs:@est_mg%susi chrE;Ez;y
information. If the Superintendent or designee determines that a request for directory information is
not related to school purposes, the District shall not disclose such directory information.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 1-19(b)(11)

Connecticut General Statutes § 7-109

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15b

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-209

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-234aa

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-234bb, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-234cc

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-234dd, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 11-8a

Connecticut General Statutes § 11-8b

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Policy adopted:

Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Policy revised:

Source: CABE

Connecticut General Statutes § 46b-56(e)

Connecticut Public Records Administration Schedule V - Disposition of
Education Records (Revised 1983).

Public Act 16-189
Public Act 17-200
Public Act 18-125

Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (Section 438 of the
General Education Provisions Act, as amended, added by Section 513 of P.L. 93-
568, codified at 20 U.S.C. 1232g.)

Department of Education 34 C.F.R. Part 99 (May 9, 1980 45 FR 30802) regs.
implementing FERPA enacted as part of 438 of General Education Provisions Act
(20 U.S.C. 1232g) parent and student privacy and other rights with respect to
educational records, as amended 11/21/96.

Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA) 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2014)

Children's Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) 15 U.S.C. §§ 6501 et seq.
(2014)

April 13, 2016
January 11, 2017
December 13, 2017
December 12, 2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3524.2

Green Cleaning Program

It is the policy of the Bethany Board of Education (Board) to implement a green cleaning program in
which the Board procures and properly uses environmentally preferable cleaning products in school
buildings and facilities.

The Board shall provide the school staff and, upon request, the parents/guardians of each child
enrolled in the school with a written statement of the Bethany Public School District’s green cleaning
program. Such notice shall include:

1.  the types and names of environmentally preferable cleaning products being applied in the
school;

2. thelocation of the application of such cleaning products in the school buildings and facilities;
3. the schedule of when such cleaning products are applied in the school buildings and
facilities;

4. the statement, "No parent, guardian, teacher or staff member may bring into the school
facility any consumer product which is intended to clean, deodorize, sanitize or disinfect";
and

5.  the name of the school administrator or his/her designee, who may be contacted for further
information.

The Board shall make such notice, as well as the report submitted to the Department of Education
pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 10-220 of the Connecticut General Statutes (i.e,, required report
on condition of facilities, action taken to implement the Board’s long-term school building program,
indoor air quality and green cleaning program), available on the school’s website under such Board’s
jurisdiction. If no such website exists, the Board shall make such notice otherwise publicly available.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-231g

Policy adopted: April 13,2016
Policy revised: November 9, 2016
Policy revised: April 7,2021

Source: Shipman

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3524.2

Recommended Revisions

Green Cleaning Program

It is the policy of the Bethany Board of Education (Board) to implement a green cleaning program in
which the Board procures and properly uses environmentally preferable cleaning products in school

buildings and facilities. Pursuant to subsection (a)(2)(A) of section 10-231g of the Connecticut General

The Board shall provide the school staff and, upon request, the parents/guardians of each child
enrolled in the school with a written statement of the Bethany Public School District’s green cleaning
program. Such notice shall include:

1. the types and names of environmentally preferable cleaning products being applied in the
school;

2.  the location of the application of such cleaning products in the school buildings and facilities;
3. the schedule of when such cleaning products are applied in the school buildings and
facilities;

4.  the statement, "No parent, guardian, teacher or staff member may bring into the school
facility any consumer product which is intended to clean, deodorize, sanitize or disinfect”;
and

5.  the name of the school administrator or his/her designee, who may be contacted for further
information.

The Board shall make such notice, as well as the report submitted to the Department of Education
pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 10-220 of the Connecticut General Statutes (i.e., required report
on condition of facilities, action taken to implement the Board’s long-term school building program,
indoor air quality and green cleaning program), available on the school’s website under such Board's
jurisdiction. If no such website exists, the Board shall make such notice otherwise publicly available.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-231g

Policy adopted: April 13,2016
Policy revised: November 9, 2016
Policy revised: April 7, 2021

Polj ised:

Source: Shipman

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3543.31(a)

Retention of Electronic Records and Information

Policy

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) complies with all state and federal regulations
regarding the retention, storage, and destruction of electronic information and records. The
Superintendent or his/her designee shall be responsible for developing and implementing
administrative regulations concerning the retention, storage, and destruction of electronic
information and the dissemination of such administrative regulations to all employees.

Use of E-mail and Electronic Communications

The Board provides computers, a computer network, including Internet access and an e-mail
system, as well as any electronic devices that access the network such as wireless and/or
portable electronic hand-held equipment that can be used for word processing, wireless
Internet access, image capture and recording, sound recording, information transmitting
and/or receiving, storing, (including but not limited to, personal laptops, Chromebooks,
Smartphones, network access devices, Kindles, Nooks, cellular telephones, radios, walkmen,
CD players, iPads or other tablet computers, walkie-talkies, Blackberries, personal data
assistants, iPhones, Androids and other electronic signaling devices), (referred to collectively
as "the computer systems"), in order to enhance both the educational opportunities for our
students and the business operations of the District.

Electronic messages sent by school officials and employees as part of their work and/or by
using the District’s computer systems and/or network are not private communications and
are potentially subject to disclosure. Employees must understand that the Board has
reserved the right to conduct monitoring of these computer systems and may do so despite
the assignment to individual employees of passwords for system security. Any password
systems implemented by the District are designed solely to provide system security from
unauthorized users, not to provide privacy to the individual system user.

The system's security aspects, message delete function, and personal passwords may be
bypassed for monitoring purposes. Therefore, employees must be aware that they should
not have any expectation of personal privacy in the use of these computer systems.
This provision applies to any and all uses of the District’'s computer systems, including any
incidental personal use permitted in accordance with the Board’s policy and regulations
regarding computer use by employees.

Any retained messages may be retrieved as part of routine monitoring by the Board, an
employee investigation or a formal discovery process as part of litigation. Employees should
bear in mind that e-mail messages may be retained at different locations within the computer
network and that these messages are subject to retrieval. Consequently, employees should
use discretion when using computers or other electronic technology to send, record or retain
electronic communications and information.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3543.31(b)

1L Retention of Electronically Stored Information

Electronic communications on District computers or electronic communication systems shall
be retained only as long as necessary. The same record retention policy that applies to paper
records applies to electronically stored information, including e-mail communications.
Therefore, like paper records, the content, and function of an electronic record, including
e-mail communications, determine the retention period for that document. The District will
comply with all of the minimum standards set forth in the Municipal Records Retention
Schedules, as issued by the Office of the Public Records Administrator for the State of
Connecticut.

In addition to the retention guidelines established by the Board and used by School District
officials and employees, all school officials and employees have a duty to preserve all records
and electronic information, including records and electronic information that might
otherwise be deleted or destroyed, that relate to any matter that is currently in litigation or
may be anticipated to involve future litigation.
Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes §§ 1-200(5), 1-211, 1-213(b)(3)

Connecticut General Statutes § 7-109

Connecticut General Statutes § 11-8 et seq.

General Letters 96-2 and 2009-2 of the Public Records Administrator

Record Retention Schedules Towns, Municipalities and Boards of Education

Public Records Policy 01, Digital Imaging, of the Public Records Administrator
(August 2014)

Frequently Asked Questions about E-mail, CT Public Records Administrator,
available at
https://ctstatelibrary.org/wpcontent/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf.

Policy adopted: April 13,2016
Policy revised: March 13,2019

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3543.31(a)

Recommended Revisions

Retention of Electronic Records and Information

Policy

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) complies with all state and federal regulations
regarding the retention, storage, and destruction of electronic information and records. The
Superintendent or his/her designee shall be responsible for developing and implementing
administrative regulations concerning the retention, storage, and destruction of electronic
information and the dlssemmatlon of such admlmstratlve regulatlons to all MA

Use of E-mail and Electronic Communications

The Board provides computers, a-computer network(s), including Internet access and an
e-mail system, as well as any electronic devices that access the network(s) such as wireless
and/or portable electronic hand-held equipment that can be used for word processing,
wireless Internet access, image capture, and recording, sound recording, information
transmitting and/or receiving, storing, (including but not limited to, personal laptops,
Chromebooks, Smartphones, network access devices, Kindles, Nooks, cellular telephones,
radios, walkmen, CD players, iPads or other tablet computers, walkie-talkies, Blackberries,
personal data assistants, iPhones, Androids and other electronic signaling devices), (referred
to collectively as "the computer systems"), in order to enhance both the educational
opportunities for our students and the business operations of the District.

Electronic messages sent by school-officials—and-employees Users as part of their work

and/or by using the District's computer systems and/or network(s) are not private
communications and are potentially subject to disclosure. Employees Users must understand
that the Board has reserved the right to conduct monitoring of these computer systems and
may do so despite the assignment to individual empleyees Users of passwords for system
security. Any password systems implemented by the District are designed solely to provide
system security from unauthorized users, not to provide privacy to the individual system
user User.

The system's security aspects, message delete function, and personal passwords may be
bypassed for monitoring purposes. Therefore, employees Users must be aware that they
should not have any expectation of personal privacy in the use of these computer
systems. This provision applies to any and all uses of the District's computer systems,
including any incidental personal use permitted in accordance with the Board’s policy and
regulations regarding computer use by employees Users.

Any retained messages may be retrieved as part of routine monitoring by the Board, an
employee investigation, or a formal discovery process as part of litigation. Empleyees Users
should bear in mind that e-mail messages may be retained at different locations within the
computer network and that these messages are subject to retrieval. Consequently, employees
Users should use discretion when using computers or other electronic technology to send,
record, or retain electronic communications and information.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS 3543.31(b)

Retention of Electronically Stored Information

Electronic communications on District computers or electronic communication systems shall
be retained only as long as necessary. The same record retention policy that applies to paper
records applies to electronically stored information, including e-mail communications.
Therefore, like paper records, the content, and function of an electronic record, including
e-mail communications, determine the retention period for that document. The District will
comply with all of the minimum standards set forth in the Municipal Records Retention
Schedules, as issued by the Office of the Public Records Administrator for the State of
Connecticut.

In addition to the retention guidelines established by the Board and used by School District
officials and employees, all school officials and employees have a duty to preserve all records
and electronic information, including records and electronic information that might
otherwise be deleted or destroyed, that relate to any matter that is currently in litigation or
may be anticipated to involve future litigation.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes §§ 1-200(5), 1-211, 1-213(b)(3)

Connecticut General Statutes § 7-109

Connecticut General Statutes § 11-8 et segq.

General Letters 96-2 and 2009-2 of the Public Records Administrator
Record Retention Schedules Towns, Municipalities and Boards of Education

Public Records Policy 01, Digital Imaging, of the Public Records Administrator
(August 2014)

Frequently Asked Questions about E-mail, CT Public Records Administrator,
available at
https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf.

Policy adopted: April 13, 2016

Policy revised: March 13, 2019

Source: Shipman

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/NON-CERTIFIED 4111(a)
4211(a)

Recruitment & Selection

The Bethany Board of Education (the “Board”) directs the Superintendent to develop and maintain a
recruitment program to attract and retain the best possible personnel who are “effective teachers” as
defined by federal law. All District teachers and staff must meet applicable state certification and
licensure requirements, including any requirements for certification obtained through alternate routes
to certification.

The District recognizes the heterogeneity of the people who live in the School District and believes that
this characteristic should have an important bearing on all aspects of the District's activities.

The Board believes it is especially important that this heterogeneity of population be recognized in the
recruitment and assignment of personnel.

To this end, the Board directs the Superintendent to develop and implement a written plan for minority
staff recruitment.

The-District shall engage in fair and sound personnel practices in the appointment of all District
employees. The Superintendent shall be responsible for establishing recruitment, selection and
appointment procedures.

The Superintendent shall ensure that the District is in compliance with the provisions of Title I and the
Every Student Succeeds Act. Manuals and handbooks shall comply with federal law as to the
qualifications for instructional personnel. Parents/guardians of students in Title I schools shall be
informed annually, at the beginning of each school year, of their right to request information about
whether their child's teacher has met state qualifications and licensing criteria for the grade levels and
subject areas in which the teacher provides instruction; is teaching under emergency or other
provisional status through which state qualifications or licensing criteria have been waived; and is
teaching in the field of discipline of the certification of the teacher. The qualifications of services
provided by paraprofessionals shall also be provided.

Hiring of Retired Teachers

A retired teacher receiving benefits from the Teachers Retirement System (TRS) may be reemployed by
the Board for up to one (1) full school year in a position a) designated by the Commissioner of Education
as a subject shortage area, or b) at a school located in a priority school district for the school year in
which the teacher is being employed. Such employment may be for up to one (1) full school year. Such
reemployment may be extended for an additional school year, provided the Board a) submits a written
request for approval to the Teachers' Retirement Board, b) certifies that no qualified candidates are
available prior to the reemployment of such teacher and c) indicates the type of assignment to be
performed, the anticipated date of rehire and the expected duration of the assignment.

The salary of such teacher shall be fixed at an amount at least equal to that paid other teachers in the
District with similar training and experience for the same type of service.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/NON-CERTIFIED 4111(b)
4211(b)

Except as indicated below, and in the first paragraph in this Section, a certified educator receiving
retirement benefits from the Teachers Retirement System (TRS) may not be employed in a certified
position receiving compensation paid out of public money appropriated for school purposes except that
such educator may be employed in such a position and receive no more than forty-five percent (45%)
of the maximum salary level for the assigned position. Any certified educator who receives in excess of
such amount shall reimburse the Board for the amount of such excess.

Commencing July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2020, the exemption from the limitation on the compensation of a
reemployed certified educator apply to an educator who a) is receiving retirement benefits from TRS
based on thirty-four (34) or more years of credited service, b} is reemployed in a district designated as
an alliance district (pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes 10-262u), and c) was serving in the district
on July 1, 2015.

A certified educator receiving retirement benefits from the system may be employed and receive
compensation, health insurance benefits, and other employment benefits provided to active teachers
employed by such school system provided such teacher does not receive a retirement income during
such employment. Payment of such teacher's retirement income shall resume on the first day of the
month following the termination of such employment.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statute § 10-151
Connecticut General Statute § 10-153
Connecticut General Statute § 10-183v, as amended
Connecticut General Statute § 10-220
Connecticut General Statute § 46a-60
Title IV Equal Employment Opportunities
34 CFR 200.55 Federal Regulations
Public Law 114-95 Every Student Succeeds Act, § 1177-55, 56

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: September 9, 1998
Policy revised: October 10, 2012
Policy revised: March 11, 2015
Policy revised: May 11, 2016
Policy revised: November 9, 2016
Policy revised: December 12,2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED /NON-CERTIFIED 4111(a)
4211(a)

Recommended Revisions
Recruitment & and Selection

The Bethany Board of Education (the“Board”) directs the Superintendent to develop and maintain a
recruitment program to attract and retain the best possible personnel who are “effective teachers” as
defined by federal law. All Bethany Public School District (District) teachers and staff must meet
applicable state certification and licensure requirements, including any requirements for certification
obtained through alternate routes to certification.

The District recognizes the heterogeneity of the people who live in the Sehoee! District and believes that
this characteristic should have an important bearing on all aspects of the District's activities.

The Board believes it is especially important that this heterogeneity of population be recognized in the
recruitment and assignment of personnel.

To this end, the Board directs the Superintendent to develop and implement a written plan for minority
staff recruitment.

The District shall engage in fair and sound personnel practices in the appointment of all District
employees. The Superintendent shall be responsible for establishing recruitment, selection, and
appointment procedures.

The Superintendent shall ensure that the District is in compliance with the provisions of Title I and the
Every Student Succeeds Act. Manuals and handbooks shall comply with federal law as to the
qualifications for instructional personnel. Parents/guardians of students in Title I schools shall be
informed annually, at the beginning of each school year, of their right to request information about
whether their child's teacher has met state qualifications and licensing criteria for the grade levels and
subject areas in which the teacher provides instruction; is teaching under emergency or other
provisional status through which state qualifications or licensing criteria have been waived, and is
teaching in the field of discipline of the certification of the teacher. The qualifications of services
provided by paraprofessionals shall also be provided.

Hiring of Retired Teachers

A retired teacher receiving benefits from the Teachers Retirement System Board (TRSB) may be
reemployed by the Board for up to one (1) full school year in a position a) designated by the
Commissioner of Education as a subject shortage area, or b) at a school located in a priority school
district for the school year in which the teacher is being employed. Such employment may be for up to
one (1) full school year. Such reemployment may be extended for an additional school year, provided
the Board a) submits a written request for approval to the Teachers' Retirement Board, b) certifies that
no qualified candidates are available prior to the reemployment of such teacher, and c) indicates the
type of assignment to be performed, the anticipated date of rehire and the expected duration of the
assignment.

The salary of such teacher shall be fixed at an amount at least equal to that paid other teachers in the
District with similar training and experience for the same type of service.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED /NON-CERTIFIED 4111(b)
4211(b)

Except as indicated below, and in the first paragraph in this Section, a certified educator receiving
retirement benefits from the TeachersRetirement System{TRS) TRB may not be employed in a certified
position receiving compensation paid out of public money appropriated for school purposes except that
such educator may be employed in such a position and receive no more than forty-five percent (45%)
of the maximum salary level for the assigned position. Any certified educator who receives in excess of
such amount shall reimburse the Board for the amount of such excess. Fringe benefits offered by the
District, if taken by the employed retired individuals, are included in the maximum compensation. The
individual can continue to pay TRB for health insurance as a retired member in the same manner as
prior to the post-retirement employment.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statute § 10-151
Connecticut General Statute § 10-153
Connecticut General Statute § 10-183v, as amended
Connecticut General Statute § 10-220
Connecticut General Statute § 46a-60
Title IV Equal Employment Opportunities
34 CFR 200.55 Federal Regulations
Public Law 114-95 Every Student Succeeds Act, § 1177-55, 56

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: September 9, 1998
Policy revised: October 10, 2012
Policy revised: March 11, 2015
Policy revised: May 11, 2016
Policy revised: November 9, 2016
Policy revised: December 12, 2018
Policy revised:

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/NON-CERTIFIED 41111
4211.1

Equal Employment Opportunity

The Board of Education will provide equal employment opportunities for all persons without regard to
race, color, religious creed, age, veterans’ status, genetic information, marital status, national origin,
sex, sexual orientation or physical disability. The Board of Education directs the administration to set
as a goal the recruitment, selection, and employment of qualified people among racial and ethnic
minority groups to the end that the District’'s employees will proportionately mirror the racial and
ethnic composition of this community.

No advertisement of employment opportunities may by intent or design restrict employment based
upon discrimination as defined by law.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-153
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-60
Connecticut General Statutes § 4a-60
Connecticut General Statutes § 4a-60a
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-81a

The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended,
38 US.C.§4212

Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008
Title VII, Civil Rights Act 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et seq.

Policy approved: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: May 10, 2006
Policy revised: April 8, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/NON-CERTIFIED 41111
42111

Recommended Revisions
Equal Employment Opportunity

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) will provide equal employment opportunities for all persons

without regard to race, religion, color, religieus-ereed, national origin, ancestry, alienage, sex, sexual
orientation, marital status, age, disability, pregnancy, gender identity or expression, or veterans’
status;-genetic-information—or physieal. The Board ef Education directs the administration to set as a
goal the recruitment, selection, and employment of qualified people among racial and ethnic minority
groups to the end that the District’'s employees will proportionately mirror the racial and ethnic
composition of this community.

No advertisement of employment opportunities may by intent or design restrict employment based
upon discrimination as defined by law.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-153
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-60
Connecticut General Statutes § 4a-60
Connecticut General Statutes § 4a-60a
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-81a

The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended,
38US.C.§4212

Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008
Title VII, Civil Rights Act 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et seq.

Policy approved: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: May 10, 2006
Policy revised: April 8, 2015
Policy revised: June 13, 2018
Policy revised;

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/CLASSIFIED 4118.11(a)
4218.11(a)

Non-discrimination and Equal Education Opportunity

The Board of Education (Board) will not make employment decisions (including decisions related to
hiring, assignment, compensation, promotion, demotion, disciplinary action, and termination) on the
basis of race, color, religion, age, sex, marital or civil union status, sexual orientation, national origin,
alienage, ancestry, veterans’ status, past or present history of mental disability, intellectual disability,
learning disability, or physical disability including but not limited to blindness, pregnancy, genetic
information, or gender identity or expression, or other disability, except in the case of a bona fide
occupational qualification.

It is the policy of the Board that any form of discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, color,
religion, age, sex, marital or civil union status, sexual orientation, national origin, alienage, ancestry,
veterans’ status, past or present history of mental disability, intellectual disability, learning disability,
or physical disability including but not limited to blindness, pregnancy, genetic information, or gender
identity or expression, or other disability, or any other basis prohibited by state or federal law, is
prohibited, whether by students, Board employees or third parties subject to the control of the Board.
The Board’s prohibition of discrimination or harassment in its educational programs or activities
expressly extends to academic, non-academic and extracurricular activities, including athletics. It is
also the policy of the Board to provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging
any discrimination on the basis of protected characteristics as defined by state and federal laws and
regulations.

For the purposes of this policy, “veteran” means any person honorably discharged from or released
under honorable conditions from active service in, the United States Army, Navy, Marine Corps, Coast
Guard, and Air Force and any reserve component thereof, including the Connecticut National Guard.

For the purposes of this policy, “genetic information” means the information about genes, gene
products, or inherited characteristics that may derive from an individual or a family member. “Genetic
information” may also include an individual’s family medical history, the results of an individual’s or
family member’s genetic tests, the fact that an individual or an individual’s family member sought or
received genetic services, and genetic information of a fetus carried by an individual or an individual’s
family member or an embryo lawfully held by an individual or family member receiving assistive
reproductive services.

For the purposes of this policy, “gender identity or expression” means a person's gender-related
identity, appearance or behavior, whether or not that gender-related identity, appearance or behavior
is different from that traditionally associated with the person's physiology or assigned sex at birth,
which gender-related identity can be shown by providing evidence including, but not limited to,
medical history, care or treatment of the gender-related identity, consistent and uniform assertion of
the gender-related identity or any other evidence that the gender-related identity is sincerely held,
part of a person's core identity or not being asserted for an improper purpose.

Any employee wishing to file a complaint regarding discrimination may obtain a copy of the Board’s
complaint procedures and complaint form which are included in the administrative regulation
accompanying this policy and are available online at www.bethany-ed.org or upon request from the
District office.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/CLASSIFIED 4118.11(b)
4218.11(b)

Anyone who has question or concerns about the Board’s policies regarding discrimination on the basis
of gender/sex or on the basis of disability may contact the Title IX Coordinator and Section 504/ADA
Coordinator:

Director of Special Services, Curriculum and Instruction
Bethany Public School District
44 Peck Road
Bethany, CT 06524
(203) 393-3350
Legal References: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et segq.
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. § 1681, et seg.
Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. § 621
Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794

Title I of the Genetic Information Non-discrimination Act of 2008,
Pub.L.110-233,42 U.S.C. § 2000ft; 29 CFR 1635.1 et seq.

Connecticut General Statutes § 1-1n
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-153
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-58
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-60
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-81a

Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-81c

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: October 14, 1992
Policy revised: May 10, 2006
Policy revised: March 11, 2015
Policy revised: May 11, 2016
Policy revised: November 9, 2016
Policy revised: March 14, 2018
Policy revised: January 8, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED /CLASSIFIED 4118.11(a)
4218.11(a)

Mandated Revisions
Non-Discrimination and Equal Education Opportunity

The Board of Education (Board) will not make employment decisions (including decisions related to
hiring, assignment, compensation, promotion, demotion, disciplinary action, and termination) on the
basis of race, color, religion, age, sex, marital or civil union status, sexual orientation, national origin,
alienage, ancestry, veterans’ status, past or present history of mental disability, intellectual disability,
learning disability, or physical disability including but not limited to blindness, pregnancy, genetic
information, or gender identity or expression, or other disability, except in the case of a bona fide
occupational qualification.

It is the policy of the Board that any form of discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, color,
religion, age, sex, marital or civil union status, sexual orientation, national origin, alienage, ancestry,
veterans’ status, past or present history of mental disability, intellectual disability, learning disability,
or physical disability including but not limited to blindness, pregnancy, genetic information, or gender
identity or expression, or other disability, or any other basis prohibited by state or federal law, is
prohibited, whether by students, Board employees or third parties subject to the control of the Board.
The Board's prohibition of discrimination or harassment in its educational programs or activities
expressly extends to academic, non-academic, and extracurricular activities, including athletics. It is
also the policy of the Board to provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging
any discrimination or harassment on the basis of protected characteristics as defined by state and
federal laws and regulations.

For the purposes of this policy, “veteran” means any person honorably discharged from e , released

under honorable conditions from or released with an other than honorable discharge based on
qualifving condition from active service in, the United States Army, Navy, Marine Corps, Coast Guard,
and A1r Force and any reserve component thereof, mcludmg the Connectlcut Natlona] Guard

For the purposes of this policy, “gender identity or expression” means a person's gender-related
identity, appearance, or behavior, whether or not that gender-related identity, appearance or behavior
is different from that traditionally associated with the person's physiology or assigned sex at birth,
which gender-related identity can be shown by providing evidence including, but not limited to,
medical history, care or treatment of the gender-related identity, consistent and uniform assertion of
the gender-related identity or any other evidence that the gender-related identity is sincerely held,
part of a person's core identity or not being asserted for an improper purpose.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Any employee wishing to file a complaint regarding discrimination or harassment may obtain a copy of
the Board's complaint procedures and complaint form which are included in the administrative
regulation accompanying this policy and are available online at www.bethany-ed.org or upon request

from the Bethany Public School District (District) office.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Legal References:

Policy adopted:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq.

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq.
Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. § 621

Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794

Title II of the Genetic Information Non-discrimination Act of 2008,
Pub.L.110-233, 42 U.S.C. § 2000ff; 29 CFR 1635.1 et seq.

Connecticut General Statutes § 1-1n
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-153
Connecticut General Statutes § 27-103
C icut General S § 46a-51
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-58
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-60
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-81a
Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-81c
Public Act 21-79

September 9, 1991
October 14, 1992
May 10, 2006

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Policy revised:

Source: Shipman

March 11, 2015
May 11, 2016
November 9, 2016
March 14, 2018
January 8, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/CLASSIFIED 4131(a)

Staff Development

Staff Development is viewed by the Bethany Board of Education (Board) as a continuous systematic
effort to improve educational programs in the Bethany Public School District (District) through 1) staff
involvement in organized program planning, implementation and evaluation efforts, and 2) activities to
upgrade the skills, knowledge, and ability of educators to improve student learning.

Each certified employee shall annually participate in a program of professional development, of not
fewer than eighteen (18) hours in length. The professional development program shall:

1. be a comprehensive, sustained and intensive approach to improving teacher and
administrator effectiveness in increasing student knowledge achievement;

2.  focus on refining and improving various effective teaching methods that are shared between
and among educators;

foster collective responsibility for improved student performance;

4.  be composed of professional learning that is aligned with rigorous state student academic
achievement standards, conducted at the school among educators and facilitated by principals,
coaches, mentors, and distinguished educators or other appropriate teachers, occurs
frequently on an individual basis or among groups of teachers in a job-embedded process of
continuous improvement, and includes a repository or best practices for teaching methods
developed by educators within the school that is continuously available to such educators for
comment and updating;

5.  include training in culturally responsive pedagogy and practice.

Staff development experiences, made available by the District directly, or through a Regional Education
Service Center (RESC), with another Board of Education shall be consistent with any goals identified by
the certified employees and the District.

The Board believes that the staff development experience should be comprehensive, sustained, and
intensive enough to improve teacher and administrator effectiveness in raising student performance,
and foster collective responsibility for improved student performance.

Teachers must constantly review curricular content, teaching methods and materials, educational
philosophy and goals, social change, and other topics related to education to enhance the capabilities of
educators to improve student learning. The Board of Education recognizes that it shares with its
certified staff responsibility for upgrading and updating of teacher performance and attitudes. The
Board of Education and teachers’ organizations support the principle of continuing training of teachers
and the improvement of instruction.

All employees shall be provided opportunities for the development of increased competence beyond
that which they may attain through the performance of their assigned duties.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED /CLASSIFIED 4131(b)
4231(b)

The Superintendent shall establish a Steering Committee, consisting of certified employees, including at
least one (1) union representative, and other school personnel deemed appropriate. The duties of the
committee shall include, but not be limited to, participation in the development of a teacher evaluation
and support program for the District, the development, evaluation and annual updating of a
comprehensive local professional development plan, in fulfillment of the statutes, for certified
employees of the District. Such plan shall 1) be directly related to the educational goals proposed by the
Board pursuant to state law, and 2) be developed in full consideration of the priorities and needs related
to student outcomes as determined by the State Board of Education, and 3) provide for the ongoing and
systematic assessment and improvement of both teacher evaluation and professional development of
the Board’s professional staff members, including personnel management and evaluation training or
experiences for administrators, shall be related to regular and special student needs and may include
provisions concerning career incentives and parent involvement.

The members chosen by the Superintendent to be on the Steering Committee shall serve at the pleasure
of the Board.

Special efforts shall be made to prepare teachers and other school personnel to meet the needs of
students of diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds. Planning and implementation of such programs
shall be done cooperatively by administration, teachers, and parent advisory groups. Special effort shall
also be given to administrators and/or supervisors in training pursuant to their obligations in the
evaluation of the teacher.

Staff development activities should respond directly to the educational and/or safety needs of the
student body. The in-service program shall fulfill all applicable statutory requirements, especially those
delineated in Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a, as amended and/or based on guidance from
federal, state, and local health authorities.

The Superintendent will allow any paraprofessional or classified employee of the District to participate,
on a voluntary basis, in any in-service training program provided to certified staff on those topics
mandated per Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a, subsection (a).

The Superintendent is to report annually to the Board of Education on the professional development
program and its effect with recommendations for changes as needed.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-27

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-153b

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-226f

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-226g

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-145b

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-148a, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-151b

Public Act 17-32

Public Act 17-37

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/CLASSIFIED

Policy adopted:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

September 9, 1991
October 11, 2000
January 9, 2013
April 8, 2015

May 11, 2016
March 14, 2018
January 8, 2020
August 12, 2020

4131(c)
4231(c)

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/CLASSIFIED 4131 Appendix

4231 Appendix

Connecticut General Statutes 10-220a - In-service Training

A.  Required In-service Topics for Certified Personnel

1.

7.
8.

Nature and the relationships of drugs and alcohol to health and personality development
and procedures for discouraging their abuse.

Health and mental health risk reduction education including, but not limited to the
prevention of risk-taking behavior by children and the relationship of such behavior to
substance abuse, pregnancy, sexually transmitted diseases, including HIV-infection and
AIDS, violence, teen dating, domestic violence, and child abuse.

School violence prevention and conflict resolution and the prevention of and response to
youth suicide and the identification and prevention of bullying and response to bullying,
as defined in Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222d, subsection (a), as amended. (Boards
that implement an evidence-based model approach approved by the State Department of
Education are not required to provide in-service training on the identification and
prevention of and response to the prevention of bullying.)

Cardiopulmonary resuscitation and other emergency life-saving procedures, as identified
by the District.

Requirements and obligations of a mandated reporter regarding reporting of child abuse
and neglect.

Training in the detection and recognition of, and evidence-based structured literacy
interventions for, students with dyslexia.

Training in the awareness of human trafficking issues.
Culturally responsive pedagogy and practice.

B.  Optional In-Service Topics for Certified Personnel

The State Department of Education, within available appropriates and utilizing available
materials, shall make the following subject matter available to Boards of Education:

1.
2.
3.

Domestic violence and teen dating violence.
Mental health first aid training.

Trauma-informed practices for the school setting to enable teachers, administrators, and
pupil personnel to more adequately respond to students with mental, emotional, or
behavioral health needs.

Second language acquisition, including, but not limited to, language development and
culturally responsive pedagogy.

Topics approved by the State Board of Education upon the request of local or regional
boards of education as part of in-service training programs pursuant to Connecticut
General Statutes § 10-2203, section 3.

Holocaust and genocide education and awareness.
African-American and black studies.

Puerto Rican and Latino studies.

Native American History.

Personal Financial Management.

The historical events surrounding the Great Famine in Ireland.

Revised March 14, 2018
Revised January 8, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



‘PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED /CLASSIFIED 4131(a)

Mandated Revisions
Staff Development

Staff Development is viewed by the Bethany Board of Education (Board) as a continuous systematic
effort to improve educational programs in the Bethany Public School District (District) through 1) staff
involvement in organized program planning, implementation, and evaluation efforts, and 2) activities to
upgrade the skills, knowledge, and ability of educators to improve student learning.

Each certified employee shall annually participate in a program of professional development, of not
fewer than eighteen (18) hours in length. The professional development program shall:

1. be a comprehensive, sustained and intensive approach to improving teacher and
administrator effectiveness in increasing student knowledge achievement;

2.  focus on refining and improving various effective teaching methods that are shared between
and among educators;

foster collective responsibility for improved student performance;

4.  be composed of professional learning that is aligned with rigorous state student academic
achievement standards, conducted at the school among educators and facilitated by principals,
coaches, mentors, and distinguished educators or other appropriate teachers, occurs
frequently on an individual basis or among groups of teachers in a job-embedded process of
continuous improvement, and includes a repository or best practices for teaching methods
developed by educators within the school that is continuously available to such educators for
comment and updating;

5.  include training in culturally responsive pedagogy and practice.

The principles and practices of social-emotional learning shall be integrated throughout the components
of such program of professional development described in items 1 through 5 above,

Staff development experiences, made available by the District directly, or through a Regional Education
Service Center (RESC), with another board of education shall be consistent with any goals identified by
the certified employees and the District.

The Board believes that the staff development experience should be comprehensive, sustained, and
intensive enough to improve teacher and administrator effectiveness in raising student performance,
and foster collective responsibility for improved student performance.

Teachers must constantly review curricular content, teaching methods and materials, educational
philosophy and goals, social change, and other topics related to education to enhance the capabilities of
educators to improve student learning. The Board efEducatior recognizes that it shares with its
certified staff responsibility for upgrading and updating of teacher performance and attitudes. The
Board efEducatien and teachers’ organizations support the principle of continuing training of teachers
and the improvement of instruction.

All employees shall be provided opportunities for the development of increased competence beyond
that which they may attain through the performance of their assigned duties.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/CLASSIFIED 4131(b)*
4231(b)

The Superintendent shall establish a Steering Committee, consisting of certified employees, including at
least one (1) union representative, and other school personnel deemed appropriate. The duties of the
committee shall include, but not be limited to, participation in the development of a teacher evaluation
and support program for the District, the development, evaluation, and annual updating of a
comprehensive local professional development plan, in fulfillment of the statutes, for certified
employees of the District. Such plan shall 1) be directly related to the educational goals proposed by the
Board pursuant to state law, and 2) be developed in full consideration of the priorities and needs related
to student social-emotional learning pursuance to Connecticut General Statutes § 10-148a, as amended,
and student outcomes as determined by the State Board of Education, and 3) provide for the ongoing
and systematic assessment and improvement of both teacher evaluation and professional development
of the Board’s professional staff members, including personnel management and evaluation training or
experiences for administrators, shall and 4) be related to regular and special student needs and may
include provisions concerning career incentives and parent involvement.

The members chosen by the Superintendent to be on the Steering Committee shall serve at the pleasure
of the Board.

Special efforts shall be made to prepare teachers and other school personnel to meet the needs of
students of diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds. Planning and implementation of such programs
shall be done cooperatively by administration, teachers, and parent advisory groups. Special effort shall
also be given to administrators and/or supervisors in training pursuant to their obligations in the
evaluation of the teacher.

Staff development activities should respond directly to the educational and/or safety needs of the
student body. The in-service program shall fulfill all applicable statutory requirements, especially those
delineated in Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a, as amended and/or based on guidance from
federal, state, and local health authorities.

The Superintendent will allow any paraprofessional or classified employee of the District to participate,
on a voluntary basis, in any in-service training program provided to certified staff on those topics
mandated per Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a, subsection (a).

The Superintendent is to report annually to the Board efEducation on the professional development
program and its effect with recommendations for changes as needed.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-27

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-153b

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-226f

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-226g

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-145b, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-148a, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-151b

Public Act 17-32

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Policy adopted:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Policy revised:

Source: CABE

Public Act 17-37

September 9, 1991
October 11, 2000
January 9, 2013
April 8, 2015

May 11, 2016
March 14, 2018
January 8, 2020
August 12, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



PERSONNEL - CERTIFIED/CLASSIFIED 4131 Appendix:

4231 Appendix

Connecticut General Statutes 10-220a - In-service Training

A.  Required In-service Topics for Certified Personnel

1.

o

po o N

Nature and the relationships of drugs and alcohol to health and personality development
and procedures for discouraging their abuse.

Health and mental health risk reduction education including, but not limited to the
prevention of risk-taking behavior by children and the relationship of such behavior to
substance abuse, pregnancy, sexually transmitted diseases, including HIV infection and
AIDS, violence, teen dating, domestic violence, and child abuse.

School violence prevention and conflict resolution and the prevention of and response to
youth suicide and the identification and prevention of bullying and response to bullying,
as defined in Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222d, subsection (a), as amended. (Boards
that implement an evidence-based model approach approved by the State Department of
Education are not required to provide in-service training on the identification and
prevention of and response to the prevention of bullying.)

Cardiopulmonary resuscitation and other emergency life-saving procedures, as identified
by the District.

Requirements and obligations of a mandated reporter regarding reporting of child abuse
and neglect.

Training in the detection and recognition of, and evidence-based structured literacy
interventions for, students with dyslexia.

Training in the awareness of human trafficking issues.
Culturally responsive pedagogy and practice.

components of the professional development program, as appropriate,

_Principles and practices of social-emotional learning shall be integrated throughout all

B.  Optional In-Service Topics for Certified Personnel

The State Department of Education, within available appropriates and utilizing available
materials, shall make the following subject matter available to boards of education:

1.
2.
3.

Domestic violence and teen dating violence.
Mental health first aid training.

Trauma-informed practices for the school setting to enable teachers, administrators, and
pupil personnel to more adequately respond to students with mental, emotional, or
behavioral health needs.

Second language acquisition, including, but not limited to, language development and
culturally responsive pedagogy.

Topics approved by the State Board of Education upon the request of local or regional
boards of education as part of in-service training programs pursuant to Connecticut
General Statutes § 10-220a, section 3.

Holocaust and genocide education and awareness.
African-American and black studies.

Puerto Rican and Latino studies.

Native American History.

Personal Financial Management.

The historical events surrounding the Great Famine in Ireland.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Revised March 14, 2018
Revised January 8, 2020
Revised

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5111(a)
Admission/Ages of Attendance/Placement

Admissi
Aresident student is a student whose parent or person having control of the student resides in the Town
of Bethany or who meets state requirements for school accommeodations. Each such child shall have and
shall be so advised by the appropriate school authorities, an equal opportunity to participate in the
Bethany Public School District’s (District) programs and activities without discrimination on account of
race, color, sex, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, marital status,
genetic information or membership in any other protected class. Students who are classified as
homeless under federal law, and therefore do not have a fixed residence, will be admitted pursuant to
federal law and Board of Education Policy or Administrative Regulation.

Each child entering the District school for the first time must present documentation, including but not
limited to, a long-form raised seal birth certificate, proof of a recent physical examination and required
immunizations as indicated by state law, proof of domicile or court documents, as applicable.

Ages of Attendance

The District school shall provide education for all persons five (5) years of age and older, having attained
age five (5) on or before the first day of January of any school year. Additionally, according to Connecticut
General Statutes, special education will be provided for children who have attained the age of three (3)
and who have been identified as being in need of special education and whose educational potential will
be irreparably diminished without special education. The parent or person having control of a child five
(5) of age shall have the option of not sending the child to school until the child is six (6) years of age.
The parent or person having control of a child six (6) years of age shall have the option of not sending
the child to school until the child is seven (7) years of age.

The parent or person shall exercise such option by personally appearing at the District office and signing
an option form. The District shall provide the parent or person with information on the educational
opportunities available in the District.

Placement

A child who applies for initial admission to the school by transfer from a non-public school or from a
school outside the District will be placed at the grade they would have reached elsewhere pending
observation and evaluation by classroom teachers, a guidance counselor, and the principal. After such
observations and evaluations have been completed, the principal will determine the final grade
placement of the child. The principal’s decision is final with no appeals.

Nothing in this policy shall serve as barriers to immediate enrollment of students, designated as
homeless or foster children as required by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) and the McKinney-
Vento Act as amended by ESSA. The District shall work with a child welfare agency, the school last
attended, or other relevant agencies to obtain the necessary documentation.
Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 4-176e to 4-180a

Connecticut General Statutes § 4-181a

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15c¢

Connecticut General Statutes §§ 10-76a to 10-76g

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5111(b)

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-184
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-186, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes §§ 10-233a to 10-233f
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-261
Connecticut Agencies Regulation § 10-76a-1
Connecticut Agencies Regulation § 10-76d-7
Connecticut Agencies Regulation § 10-204a
Public Act 19-179

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. § 11431 et
seq., as amended

Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982)

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: September 24, 2003
Policy revised: November 10, 2004
Policy revised: May 13, 2015

Policy revised: June 8, 2016

Policy revised: December 13, 2017
Policy revised: April 8,2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF OPTION TO EXEMPT ATTENDANCE OF
CHILD FIVE OR SIX YEARS OF AGE FROM SCHOOL

Pursuant to Section 10-184 of the Connecticut General Statutes, I,

Name of parent/guardian/other

of

Address

the parent, guardian or other person charged with the care of the following minor child,

, of
Name of child
who was
Address
born on do hereby choose not to send my child to public school during

Date of birth

school year.

Furthermore, before signing this form, a representative of the Bethany Public School District met with
me and provided me with information concerning the educational opportunities and school
accommodations available in the District.

ACKNOWLEDGED BY:

Signature of parent/guardian/other Date

Policy 5111 - Form - Approved May 13, 2015

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



_ STUDENTS 5111(a)

Mandated Revisions
Admission/Ages of Attendance/Placement

Admission

Aresident student is a student whose parent or person having control of the student resides in the Town
of Bethany or who meets state requirements for school accommodations. Each such child shall have and
shall be so advised by the appropriate school authorities, an equal opportunity to participate in the
Bethany Public School District’s (District) programs and activities without discrimination on account of
race, color, sex, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, marital status,

genetic information or membership in any other protected class. Students who are classified as
homeless under federal law, and therefore do not have a fixed residence, will be admitted pursuant to
federal law and Board of Education Policy or Administrative Regulation.

Each child entering the District school for the first time must present documentation, including but not
limited to, a long-form raised seal birth certificate, proof of a recent physical examination and required
immunizations as indicated by state law, proof of domicile, military orders, or court documents, as
applicable.

Ages of Attendance

The District school shall provide education for all persons five (5) years of age and older, having attained
age five (5) on or before the first day of January of any school year. Additionally, according to Connecticut
General Statutes, special education will be provided for children who have attained the age of three (3)
and who have been identified as being in need of special education and whose educational potential will
be irreparably diminished without special education. The parent or person having control of a child five
(5) of age shall have the option of not sending the child to school until the child is six (6) years of age.
The parent or person having control of a child six (6) years of age shall have the option of not sending
the child to school until the child is seven (7) years of age.

The parent or person shall exercise such option by personally appearing at the District office and signing
an option form. The District shall provide the parent or person with information on the educational
opportunities available in the District.

Placement

A child who applies for initial admission to the school by transfer from a non-public school or from a
school outsxde the Dlstrlct will be placed at the grade they would have reached elsewhere pending

principal. After such observations and evaluations have been completed, the principal will determme
the final grade placement of the child. The principal’s decision is final with no appeals.

Nothing in this policy shall serve as barriers to immediate enrollment of students, designated as
homeless or foster children as required by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) and the McKinney-
Vento Act as amended by ESSA. The District shall work with a child welfare agency, the school last
attended, or other relevant agencies to obtain the necessary documentation.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 4-176e to 4-180a
Connecticut General Statutes § 4-181a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15c¢

Connecticut General Statutes §§ 10-76a to 10-76g

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5111(b) .

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-184
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-186, as amended
Connecticut General Statutes §§ 10-233ato 10-233f
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-261
Connecticut Agencies Regulation § 10-76a-1
Connecticut Agencies Regulation § 10-76d-7
Connecticut Agencies Regulation § 10-204a
Public Act 19-179
Public Act 21-86

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act, 42 US.C. § 11431 et
seq., as amended

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: September 24, 2003
Policy revised: November 10, 2004
Policy revised: May 13, 2015

Policy revised: June 8, 2016

Policy revised: December 13, 2017
Policy revised: April 8, 2020

Policy revised:

Source: Shipman

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



v

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF OPTION TO EXEMPT ATTENDANCE OF
CHILD FIVE OR SIX YEARS OF AGE FROM SCHOOL

Pursuant to Section 10-184 of the Connecticut General Statutes, I,

Name of parent/guardian/other

of

Address

the parent, guardian or other person charged with the care of the following minor child,

, of
Name of child
who was
Address
born on do hereby choose not to send my child to public school during

Date of birth

school year.

Furthermore, before signing this form, a representative of the Bethany Public School District met with
me and provided me with information concerning the educational opportunities and school
accommodations available in the District.

ACKNOWLEDGED BY:

Signature of parent/guardian/other Date

Policy 5111 - Form - Approved May 13,2015

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5118

Resident and Nonresident Attendance

The Bethany Board of Education allows any child of school age who is a resident of the town of
Bethany, as defined by statute, to attend the Bethany Community School. By Connecticut statute, the
town of Bethany is required to provide school accommodations to students who are permanent
residents of Bethany.

Residency must be permanent, provided without pay, and not for the sole purpose of obtaining school
accommodations. The burden of proof in determining student residency shall be on the party claiming
residency.

The Superintendent will establish administrative regulations regarding attendance eligibility of
resident and non-resident students.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes §§ 4-176e through 4-185
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-186
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-253
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. 11431 et seq.

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: November 4, 1996
Policy revised: November 17,1998
Policy revised: June 9, 2010

Policy revised: May 11, 2011
Policy revised: May 13, 2015
Policy revised: October 5, 2016
Policy reviewed: December 9, 2020

Source: BPSD/CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5118

Mandated Revisions
Resident and Nonresident Attendance

The Bethany Board of Education allows any child of school age who is a resident of the town of
Bethany, as defined by statute, to attend the Bethany Community School. By Connecticut statute, the
town of Bethany is required to provide school accommodations to students who are permanent
residents of Bethany. The Board will accept the military orders of a child of the armed forces as proof
of residency.

Residency must be permanent, provided without pay, and not for the sole purpose of obtaining school
accommodations. The burden of proof in determining student residency shall be on the party claiming
residency.

The Superintendent will establish administrative regulations regarding attendance eligibility of
resident and non-resident students.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes §§ 4-176e through 4-185
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-186
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-253
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. 11431 et seq.

Public Act 21-86
Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: November 4, 1996
Policy revised: November 17, 1998
Policy revised: June 9, 2010
Policy revised: May 11, 2011
Policy revised: May 13,2015
Policy revised: October 5, 2016
Policy reviewed: December 9, 2020

Source: BPSD/CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS ' 5124

Reporting to Parents

The Board of Education encourages regular and effective two-way communication between
parent/guardian and teacher through frequent and varied reporting methods. Parent/Teacher
conferences, letters, informal notes, emails, and telephone calls to parents/guardians should be used
regularly, among other means, to inform parents/guardians of student successes and student needs
and to inform teachers of parent/guardian concerns about, suggestions for, and perceptions of their
child which may help the teacher in his/her work with the particular child.

Parent/Teacher Conferences

Parent/Teacher Conferences will be held two (2) times in a school year. Parent/Teacher conference
dates will be determined annually and placed on the school calendar. Parent/Teacher conferences may
be held anytime during the school year, as needed, upon mutual agreement with the child’s teacher.
Conferences may be conducted via telephone or virtually via video conference in the event school
buildings are closed to students or individuals are provided limited access to school buildings as a
result of a health emergency.

Report Card

Reports on student progress will be issued in accordance with a schedule approved by the
Superintendent after consultation with school administration. Reporting dates will be determined
annually. Parents/Guardians will be advised no later than March 15 of a student’s potential failure in a
course or grade and the possibility of the student repeating the grade or course.

Report cards shall reflect the educational growth of the student in relation to their ability, attitudes,
interests, conduct or citizenship, and achievement and in relation to standards for his/her age and
grade.

Household

If the parents are separated or divorced, both parents will have equal rights to be informed of their
child’s school progress unless there is an order from the court to the contrary. Noncustodial parents
shall receive written reports and conference notifications with a written request to school
administration.

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15b
Connecticut General Statutes § 46b-56

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: May 13, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018
Policy revised: August 12,2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5124

Mandated Revisions
Reporting to Parents

The Bethany Board of Education encourages regular and effective two-way communication between
parent/guardian and teacher through frequent and varied reporting methods. Parent/Teacher
conferences, letters, informal notes, emails, and telephone calls to parents/guardians should be used
regularly, among other means, to inform parents/guardians of student successes and student needs
and to inform teachers of parent/guardian concerns about, suggestions for, and perceptions of their
child which may help the teacher in his/her work working with the particular child.

Parent/Teacher Conferences

The Bethany Public School District (District) is required to conduct two (2) flexible parent/teacher

conferences each school vear. In addition, the District is required to:
1. offer parents the option of attending parent/teacher conferences by telephone, video, or other
conferencing platform,

2. conduct one (1) parent/teacher conference, in addition to the two (2) flexible parent/teacher
conferences described above, during periods when the District provides remote learning for
more than three (3) consecutive weeks, and one (1) additional parent/teacher conference
every six (6) months thereafter for the duration of such period of remote learning (for
purposes of this policy, and in accordance with applicable law, “remote learning” means
instruction by means of one (1) or more Internet-based software platforms as part of a remote
learning model), and

Mmmﬂﬁmmwmmmgm&u the student’s parent/guardian cannot be
ngaghﬂd_to_&chedum a parent/teacher conference required during periods of District provided

n or after [anuary 1, 2022, a teacher conducting a parent/teacher conference that is required in
%&szgwwé_“ﬂgmw
Department of Education, to provide information concerning education, safety, mental health, and food
insecurity resources and programs available for students and their families, to the parent/guardian
prior to the parent/teacher conference, If, after making three (3) attempts, a teacher is unable to make
contact with a student’s parent/guardian in order to schedule a parent/teacher conference required in
section 2 above, the teacher shall report such inability to the school administration or designee. Such
school administration or designee shall contact an emergency contact person designation by the
student’s parent/guardian to ascertain such student’s and family’s health and safety.

Report Card

Reports on student progress will be issued in accordance with a schedule approved by the
Superintendent after consultation with school administration. Reporting dates will be determined
annually and placed on the school calendar. Parents/Guardians will be advised no later than March 15

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



of a student’s potential failure in a course or grade and the possibility of the student repeating the

grade or course.

Report cards shall reflect the educational growth of the student in relation to their ability, attitudes,
interests, conduct or citizenship, and achievement and in relation to standards for his/her the
student’s age and grade.

Household

If the parents are separated or divorced, both parents will have equal rights to be informed of their
child’s school progress unless there is an order from the court to the contrary. Non-custodial parents
shall receive written reports and conference notifications with a written request to school

administration.

Legal References:

Policy adopted:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Source: Shipman & CABE

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15b

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220(f)
Connecticut General Statutes § 46b-56

September 9, 1991
May 13, 2015

June 13, 2018
August 12, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT

Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5126
Awards for Achievement

The Board of Education encourages administration and faculty to maintain a set of criteria and
procedures for presenting awards to students for scholarship and distinguished service in school
activities. In all cases, the relationship between the award and the relevant goal(s) of the school should
be clear. Criteria for determining the awards shall be clearly established by the administration and
faculty.

The administration is authorized to review and approve or reject, proposed trophies, prizes,
scholarships or other awards from non-school donors.

All honors and awards presented by the school shall serve as an incentive to enrich the school program.
All honors, awards, and scholarships presented by the school shall be awarded strictly on the merits of
the student receiving them.

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: October 7, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5126

Recommended Revisions
Awards for Achievement

The Bethany Board of Education encourages administration and faeulty staff to maintain a set of criteria
and procedures for presenting awards to students for scholarship and distinguished service in school
activities. The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the development of staff guidelines for review
and approval of proposed trophies, prizes, scholarships, or other awards from non-school donors.

hn-aleases, the Therelatlonshlp between the—awapé awaLds and the relevant geai(s} ggals of the school
should be clear. 6

All honors and awards presented by the school shall serve as an incentive to enrich the school program.
All honors, awards, and scholarships presented by the school shall be awarded strictly on the merits of
the student receiving them.

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: October 7, 2015
Policy revised: June 13,2018
Policy revised:

Source: CABE/BPSD

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5131.911(a)

Bullying Prevention and Intervention

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) is committed to creating and maintaining an educational
environment that is physically, emotionally and intellectually safe and thus free from bullying, teen
dating violence, harassment, and discrimination. In accordance with state law and the Board’s Safe
School Climate Plan, the Board expressly prohibits any form of bullying behavior on school grounds; at
a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program, whether on or off school grounds;
at a school bus stop; on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased or used by a local board of
education; or through the use of an electronic device or an electronic mobile device owned, leased or
used by the Board.

The Board also prohibits any form of bullying behavior outside of the school setting if such bullying (i)
creates a hostile environment at school for the student against whom such bullying was directed, (ii)
infringes on the rights of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school, or (iii)
substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of the school. Discrimination
and/or retaliation against an individual who reports or assists in the investigation of an act of bullying
is likewise prohibited.

Students who engage in bullying behavior or teen dating violence shall be subject to school discipline,
up to and including expulsion, in accordance with the Board's policies and any accompanying
administrative regulations on student discipline, suspension and expulsion, and consistent with state
and federal law.

For purposes of this policy, “Bullying” means the repeated use by one or more students of a written,
oral or electronic communication, such as cyberbullying, directed at or referring to another student
attending school in the Bethany Public School District (District), or a physical act or gesture by one or
more students repeatedly directed at another student attending school in the District, that:

=

causes physical or emotional harm to such student or damage to such student’s property;

2. places such student in reasonable fear of harm to himself or herself, or of damage to his or
her property;

creates a hostile environment at school for such student;
4.  infringes on the rights of such student at school; or

substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

Bullying shall include, but not be limited to, a written, verbal or electronic communication or physical
act or gesture-based on any actual or perceived differentiating characteristics, such as race, color,
religion, ancestry, national origin, alienage, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression,
socioeconomic status, academic status, physical appearance, or mental, physical, developmental or
sensory disability, or by association with an individual or group who has or is perceived to have one or
more of such characteristics.

For purposes of this policy, "Cyberbullying” means any act of bullying through the use of the Internet,
interactive and digital technologies, cellular mobile telephone or other mobile electronic devices or
any electronic communications.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5131.911(b)

For purposes of this policy, “Teen Dating Violence” means any act of physical, emotional or sexual
abuse, including stalking, harassing and threatening, that occurs between two (2) students who are
currently in or who have recently been in a dating relationship.

Consistent with the requirements under state law, the Board authorizes the Superintendent or his/her
designee, along with the Safe School Climate Coordinator, to be responsible for developing and
implementing a Safe School Climate Plan in furtherance of this policy. As provided by state law, such
Safe School Climate Plan shall include, but not be limited to provisions which:

1.

10.

11.

enable students to anonymously report acts of bullying to school employees and require
students and the parents/guardians of students to be notified at the beginning of each school
year of the process by which students may make such reports;

enable the parents/guardians of students to file written reports of suspected bullying;

require school employees who witness acts of bullying or receive reports of bullying to orally
notify the safe school climate specialist, or another school administrator if the safe school
climate specialist is unavailable, not later than one (1) school day after such school employee
witnesses or receives a report of bullying, and to file a written report not later than two (2)
school days after making such oral report;

require the safe school climate specialist to investigate or supervise the investigation of all
reports of bullying and ensure that such investigation is completed promptly after receipt of
any written reports made under this section and that the parents/guardians of the student
alleged to have committed an act or acts of bullying and the parents/guardians of the student
against whom such alleged act or acts were directed receive prompt notice that such
investigation has commenced;

require the safe school climate specialist to review any anonymous reports, except that no
disciplinary action shall be taken solely on the basis of an anonymous report;

include a prevention and intervention strategy for school employees to deal with bullying
and teen dating violence;

provide for the inclusion of language in student codes of conduct concerning bullying;

require each school to notify the parents/guardians of students who commit any verified acts
of bullying and the parents/guardians of students against whom such acts were directed not
later than forty-eight (48) hours after the completion of the investigation described in
subdivision 4, above;

require each school to invite the parents/guardians of a student against whom such act was
directed to a meeting to communicate to such parents/guardians the measures being taken
by the school to ensure the safety of the student against whom such act was directed and
policies and procedures in place to prevent further acts of bullying;

require each school to invite the parents/guardians of a student who commits any verified
act of bullying to a meeting, separate and distinct from the meeting required in subdivision
(9) above, to discuss specific interventions undertaken by the school to prevent further acts
of bullying;

establish a procedure for each school to document and maintain records relating to reports
and investigations of bullying in such school and to maintain a list of the number of verified
acts of bullying in such school and make such list available for public inspection, and
annually report such number to the Department of Education and in such manner as
prescribed by the Commissioner of Education;

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5131.911(c)

12. direct the development of case-by-case interventions for addressing repeated incidents of
bullying against a single individual or recurrently perpetrated bullying incidents by the same
individual that may include both counseling and discipline;

13. prohibit discrimination and retaliation against an individual who reports or assists in the
investigation of an act of bullying;

14. direct the development of student safety support plans for students against whom an act of
bullying was directed that address safety measures the school will take to protect such
students against further acts of bullying;

15. require the principal of a school, or the principal's designee, to notify the appropriate local
law enforcement agency when such principal, or the principal's designee, believes that any
acts of bullying constitute criminal conduct;

16. prohibit bullying A)on school grounds, at a school-sponsored or school-related activity,
function or program whether on or off school grounds, at a school bus stop, on a school bus
or other vehicle owned, leased or used by a local or regional board of education, or through
the use of an electronic device or an electronic mobile device owned, leased or used by the
Board, and B)outside of the school setting if such bullying i)creates a hostile environment at
school for the student against whom such bullying was directed, or ii)infringes on the rights
of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school, or iii)substantially
disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school;

17. require, at the beginning of each school year, each school to provide all school employees
with a written or electronic copy of the school District's Safe School Climate Plan;

18. require that all school employees annually complete the training described in Connecticut
General Statures §§ 10-220a or 10-222j related to the identification, prevention, and
response to bullying; and

19. provide on the Board’s website training materials to District administrators regarding the
prevention of and intervention in discrimination against and targeted harassment of
students based on such students’ A) actual or perceived differentiating characteristics, such
as race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, alienage, gender, sexual orientation, gender
identity and expression, socioeconomic status, academic status, physical appearance, or
mental, physical, developmental or sensory disability, or B) association with individuals or
groups who have or are perceived to have one (1) or more of such characteristics.

The notification required pursuant to subdivision (8) (above} and the invitation required pursuant to
subdivisions (9) and (10) (above) shall include a description of the response of school employees to
such acts and any consequences that may result from the commission of further acts of bullying. Any
information provided under this policy or accompanying Safe School Climate Plan shall be provided in
accordance with the confidentiality restrictions imposed under the Family Educational Rights Privacy
Act ("FERPA") and the District's Confidentiality and Access to Student Information policy and
regulations.

The Board shall submit its Safe School Climate Plan to the State Department of Education for review
and approval. Not later than thirty (30) calendar days after approval by the Department, the Board
shall make such plan available on the District's web site and ensure that the Safe School Climate Plan is
included in the District's publication of the rules, procedures, and standards of conduct for schools and
in all student handbooks.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS

Legal References:

Policy adopted:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-145a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-1450
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222d
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222g
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222h
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222j
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222k
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-2221

5131.911(d)

Connecticut General Statutes §§ 10-233a through 10-233f

Public Act 19-166

October 9, 2002
January 14, 2009
December 14, 2011
May 13, 2015
November 9, 2016
January 8, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT

Bethany, Connecticut



> STUDENTS 5131.911(a)

Mandated Revisions
Bullying Prevention and Intervention

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) is committed to creating and maintaining an educational
environment that is physically, emotionally, and intellectually safe and thus free from bullying, teen
dating violence, harassment, and discrimination. In accordance with state law and the Board’s Safe
School Climate Plan, the Board expressly prohibits any form of bullying behavior on school grounds; at
a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program, whether on or off school grounds;
at a school bus stop; on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased or used by a local board of
education; or through the use of an electronic device or an electronic mobile device owned, leased or
used by the Board.

The Board also prohibits any form of bullying behavior outside of the school setting if such bullying (i)
creates a hostile environment at school for the student against whom such bullying was directed, (ii)
infringes on the rights of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school, or (iii)
substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of the school. Discrimination
and/or retaliation against an individual who reports or assists in the investigation of an act of bullying
is likewise prohibited.

Students who engage in bullying behavior or teen dating violence shall be subject to school discipline,
up to and including expulsion, in accordance with the Board's policies and any accompanying
administrative regulations on student discipline, suspension and expulsion, and consistent with state
and federal law.

For purposes of thls pollcy, Bullymg means&meﬁeéu%bwwnme—s@uden@&ef—a%&en—eml

1.  causes physical or emotional harm to sueh-student-or-damage to-such-student's property an
individual;

2.  places such-student-an individual in reasonable fear of physical or emotional harm-te-himself
or-herself-or of damage-to-his-or-her property; or

3.  ereates-ahestile-environmentatschoolforsuchstudent;

Bullying shall include, but need not be limited to, a written, verbal gral, or electronic communication or
physical act or gesture-based on any actual or perceived differentiating characteristics, such as race,
color, religion, ancestry, national origin, alienage, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity and
expression, socioeconomic status, academic status, physical appearance, or mental, physical,
developmental or sensory disability, or by association with an individual or group who has or is
perceived to have one or more of such characteristics.

For purposes of this policy, Cyberbullying means any act of bullying through the use of the Internet,
interactive and digital technologies, cellular mobile telephone or other mobile electronic devices, or
any electronic communications.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5131.911(b)’

For purposes of this policy, Teen Dating Violence means any act of physical, emotional, or sexual
abuse, including stalking, harassing, and threatening, that occurs between two (2) students who are
currently in or who have recently been in a dating relationship.

Consistent with the requirements under state law, the Board authorizes the Superintendent or histher
designee, along with the Safe School Climate Ceordinater Specialist (Specialist), to be responsible for
developing and implementing a Safe School Climate Plan in furtherance of this policy. As provided by
state law, such Safe School Climate Plan shall include, but not be limited to provisions which:

1.  enable students to anonymously report acts of bullying to school employees and require
students and the parents/guardians of students to be notified at the beginning of each school
year of the process by which students may make such reports;

enable the parents/guardians of students to file written reports of suspected bullying;

require school employees who witness acts of bullying or receive reports of bullying to orally
notify the safe-school-climate specialist Specialist, or another school administrator if the safe
schoolclimate specialist Specialist is unavailable, not later than one (1) school day after such
school employee witnesses or receives a report of bullying, and to file a written report not
later than two (2) school days after making such oral report;

4. require the safe—schoeol-€limatespecialist Specialist to investigate or supervise the

investigation of all reports of bullying and ensure that such investigation is completed
promptly after receipt of any written reports made under this section and that the
parents/guardians of the student alleged to have committed an act or acts of bullying and the
parents/guardians of the student against whom such alleged act or acts were directed
receive prompt notice that such investigation has commenced;

5.  require the safe-school-climate speeialist Specialist to review any anonymous reports, except
that no disciplinary action shall be taken solely on the basis of an anonymous report;

6. include a prevention and intervention strategy for school employees to deal with bullying
and teen dating violence;

provide for the inclusion of language in student codes of conduct concerning bullying;

8. require each the school to notify the parents/guardians of students who commit any verified
acts of bullying and the parents/guardians of students against whom such acts were directed
not later than forty-eight (48) hours after the completion of the investigation described in
subdivision 4, above a) of the results of such investigation, and b) verbally or by electronic
mail, if such parents/guardians electronic mail addresses are known, that such
parents/guardians may refer to the plain language explanation of the rights and remedies
available under Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-4a and 104b published on the
Internet website of the Bethany Public School District (District);

9. require each the school to invite the parents/guardians of a student against whom such act
was directed to a meeting to communicate to such parents/guardians the measures being
taken by the school to ensure the safety of the student against whom such act was directed
and policies and procedures in place to prevent further acts of bullying;

10. require each the school to invite the parents/guardians of a student who commits any
verified act of bullying to a meeting, separate and distinct from the meeting required in
subdivision (9) above, to discuss specific interventions undertaken by the school to prevent
further acts of bullying;

11. establish a procedure for each the school to document and maintain records relating to
reports and investigations of bullying in such the school and to maintain a list of the number

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut

B



of verified acts of bullying in sueh the school and make such list available for public
inspection, and annually report such number to the Department of Education and in such
manner as prescribed by the Commissioner of Education;

12. direct the development of case-by-case interventions for addressing repeated incidents of
bullying against a single individual or recurrently perpetrated bullying incidents by the same
individual that may include both counseling and discipline;

13. prohibit discrimination and retaliation against an individual who reports or assists in the
investigation of an act of bullying;

14. direct the development of student safety support plans for students against whom an act of
bullying was directed that address safety measures the school will take to protect such
students against further acts of bullying;

15. require the principal of a the school;-or the-prineipal's designee, to notify the appropriate
local law enforcement agency when such principal-or the-principal's designee, believes that
any acts of bullying constitute criminal conduct;

16. prohibit bullying a) on school grounds, at a school-sponsored or school-related activity,
function, or program whether on or off school grounds, at a school bus stop, on a school bus,
or other vehicle owned, leased, or used by a local or regional board of education, or through
the use of an electronic device or an electronic mobile device owned, leased or used by the
Board, and b) outside of the school setting if such bullying i) creates a hostile environment at
school for the student against whom such bullying was directed, or ii) infringes on the rights
of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school, or iii} substantially
disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a the school;

17. require, at the beginning of each school year, each school to provide all school employees
with a written or electronic copy of the seheoel District's Safe School Climate Plan;

18. require that all school employees annually complete the training described in Connecticut
General Statures Statutes §§ Sections 10-220a or 10-222j related to the identification,
prevention, and response to bullying; and

The notification required pursuant to subdivision (8) (above) and the invitation required pursuant to
subdivisions (9) and (10) (above) shall include a description of the response of school employees to
such acts and any consequences that may result from the commission of further acts of bullying. Any
information provided under this policy or accompanying Safe School Climate Plan shall be provided in
accordance with the confidentiality restrictions imposed under the Family Educational Rights Privacy
Act (FERPA) and the District's Confidentiality and Access to Student Information policy and
regulations.

The Board shall submit its Safe School Climate Plan to the State Department of Education for review
and approval. Not later than thirty (30) calendar days after approval by the Department, the Board
shall make such plan available on the District's website and ensure that the Safe School Climate Plan is
included in the District's publication of the rules, procedures, and standards of conduct for schoels the
school and in all student handbooks.

Edugatmn and J:he CangmcuL Schal ami Emgugnal Lgammg ami Ss:hQQL Chman: Adviso
BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



As required by state law, the Board shall post on its website the plain language explanation of rights
and remedies under Connecticut General Statutes Sections 10-4a and 10-4b, as developed and provide

to the Board by the Connecticut Social and Emotional Learning and School Climate Advisory
Collaborative.

Legal References:

Policy adopted:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:
Policy revised:

Source: Shipman

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-145a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-1450
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222d
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222g
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222h
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222j

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222k
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-2221

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222q
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-222r

Connecticut General Statutes §§ 10-233a through 10-233f

Public Act 19-166
Public Act 21-95

October 9, 2002
January 14, 2009
December 14, 2011
May 13, 2015
November 9, 2016
January 8, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT

Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141(a)

Student Health Services

District Medical Advisor

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) directs the Superintendent to appoint a Bethany Public School
District (District) medical advisor and appropriate medical support service personnel including nurses
that are recommended by the Superintendent.

The District Medical Advisor, in cooperation with the Board and the local Health Department for the
District, shall:

1. plan and administer the school’s health program,
2. advise on the provision of school health services,
3. provide consultation on the school health environment, and
4. perform any other duties as agreed between the advisor and the appointing Board.
School health efforts shall be directed toward detection and prevention of health problems and to
emergency treatment, including the following student health services:
appraising the health status of student school personnel,
counseling students, parents, and others concerning the findings of health examination,
encouraging correction of defects,

1

2

3

4, helping prevent and control disease,

5. providing emergency care for student injury and sudden illness,
6

maintaining school health records.

Health Records

There shall be a health record for each student enrolled in the District which will be maintained in the
school nurse's office. For the purposes of confidentiality, records will be treated in the same manner as
the student’s cumulative academic record.

Student health records are covered by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and are
exempt from the Health Insurance Portability Act (HIPAA) privacy rule. However, it is recognized that
obtaining medical information from health care providers will require schools to have proper
authorization and to inform parents/guardians that such information once released by health care
providers is no longer protected under HIPAA but is covered under FERPA.

Regular Health Assessments

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) requires each student enrolled in the Bethany Public School
District (District) to undergo health assessments as mandated by state law. The purpose of such health
assessments shall be to ascertain whether a student has any physical disability tending to prevent
him/her from receiving the full benefit of school work and to ascertain whether school work should be
modified in order to prevent injury to the student or to secure a suitable program of education for
him/her. Such health assessments must be conducted by one (1) of the following qualified providers for
health assessments: 1) a legally qualified practitioner of medicine, 2) an advanced practice registered

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141(b)

nurse or registered nurse, who is licensed under state statute, 3) a physician assistant, who is licensed
under state statute, 4) the school medical advisor or 5) a legally qualified practitioner of medicine, an
advanced practice registered nurse or a physician assistant stationed at any military base. The Board
will provide written prior notice of the health assessments required under these administrative
regulations to the parent or guardian of each student subject to assessment. The parent or guardian shall
be provided a reasonable opportunity to be present during such assessment or he/she may provide for
such assessment him/herself. No health assessment shall be made of any public school student unless it
is made in the presence of the parent or guardian or in the presence of another school employee. Any
student who fails to obtain the health assessments required by these administrative regulations may be
denied continued attendance in the District.

Prior to enrollment in kindergarten, each child shall have a health assessment by one of the following
medical personnel of the parents/guardians choosing to ascertain whether the student has any physical
disability or other health problem tending to prevent him or her from receiving the full benefit of school
work and to ascertain whether such school work should be modified in order to prevent injury to the
student or to secure for the student a suitable program of education:

. alegally qualified physician,

. an advanced practice registered nurse,

. aregistered nurse,

1

2

3

4. aphysician's assistant,

5. adistrict medical advisor,
6

. a legally qualified practitioner of medicine, an advanced practice registered nurse or a
physician assistant stationed at any military base.

Such health assessment shall include:
1. Physical examination which shall include hematocrit or hemoglobin tests, height, weight, and

blood pressure.

2. Updating of immunizations required under Connecticut General Statutes § 10-204 and as
periodically amended.

3. Vision, hearing, postural, and gross dental screenings.
4. Any other information including a health history as the physician believes to be necessary and
appropriate.

Health assessments shall also be required in grade 6 by a legally qualified physician of each student's
parents/guardians own choosing, or by the District Medical Advisor to ascertain whether a student has
any physical disability or other health problems. Such health assessments shall include:

1. Physical examination which shall include hematocrit or hemoglobin tests, height, weight, and
blood pressure.

2. Updating of immunizations required under Connecticut General Statutes § 10-204a and the
Department of Public Health, Public Health Code, 10-204a-2a, 10-204-3a, and 10-204a-4.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141(c)

3. Vision, hearing, postural, and gross dental screenings.

4. Any other information including a health history as the physician believes to be necessary and
appropriate.

A child will not be allowed, as the case may be, to begin or continue in school unless health assessments
are performed as required. Students transferring into the District must provide evidence of required
Connecticut vaccinations, immunizations, and health assessments at enrollment and prior to school
attendance.

Health assessments will be provided by the District Medical Advisor without charge to all students
whose parents/guardians meet the eligibility requirement of free and reduced-price meals under the
National School Lunch Program.

The Board shall annually designate a representative to receive reports of health assessments and
immunizations from health care providers.

Health assessment results and recommendations signed by the examining physician or authorized
medical personnel shall be recorded on forms provided by the Connecticut State Board of Education and
kept on file in the school. Upon written authorization from the student's parent/guardian, original
cumulative health records shall be sent to the chief administrative officer of the District to which such
student moves and a true copy of the student's cumulative health records maintained with the student's
academic records. The Superintendent, or his/her designee, shall notify parents/guardians of any
health-related problems detected in health assessments and shall make reasonable efforts to assure that
further testing and treatment are provided, including advice on obtaining such required testing or
treatment.

Students who violate Board requirements for health assessments and immunizations will be excluded
from school after appropriate parental /guardian notice and warning.

Vision Screening

All students in grades K, 1, 3, 4 & 5 will be screened using a Snellen chart, or equivalent screening, by
the school nurse. Additional vision screenings will also be conducted in response to appropriate
requests from parents/guardians or professionals working with the student in question. Results will be
recorded in the student’s health record on forms supplied by the Connecticut State Board of Education,
and the Superintendent shall cause a written notice to be given to the parent/guardian of each student
found to have any defect of vision, with a brief statement describing such defect.

As necessary, special educational provisions shall be made for students with disabilities.

Hearing Screening

All students will be screened for possible hearing impairments in grades. K, 1, 3, 4 & 5. Additional
audiometric screenings will be conducted in response to appropriate requests from parents/guardians
or professionals working with the student. Results will be recorded in the student's health record on
forms supplied by the Connecticut State Board of Education, and the Superintendent shall cause a
written notice to be given to the parent/guardian of each student found to have any defect of hearing,
with a brief statement describing such defect.

As necessary, special educational provisions shall be made for students with disabilities.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141(d)

Postural Screening

School nurses will screen all female students in grade 5 for scoliosis or other postural problems.
Additional postural screenings will also be conducted in response to appropriate requests from
parents/guardians or professionals working with the student. Results will be recorded in the student's
health record on forms supplied by the Connecticut State Board of Education, and the Superintendent
shall cause a written notice to be given to the parent/guardian of each student found to have any
postural defect of problem, with a brief statement describing such defect or disease.

As necessary, special educational provisions shall be made for students with disabilities.

Oral Health Assessments

Parents/guardians are encouraged to have oral health assessments for their child(ren) prior to public
school enrollment. Such assessment may be conducted by a dentist, dental hygienist, physician,
physician assistant, or an advanced practice registered nurse, if he or she is trained in conducting such
assessments as part of a Department of Public Health approved training program. When conducted by
a dentist the oral assessment must include a dental examination. If another such provider conducts the
assessment, it must include a visual screening and risk assessment.

A child’s public school enrollment continued attendance shall not be denied for his/her failure to receive
the oral health assessment.

Immunizations/Vaccinations

No student will be allowed to enroll in district schools without adequate immunization against the
following diseases:

Measles

Rubella

Poliomyelitis

Diphtheria

Tetanus

Pertussis

Mumps

Hemophilus influenza type B

© ® N wN e

Hepatitis B

—
o

. Varicella (Chickenpox)
. Hepatitis A

[
[N

. Pneumococcal disease

—
w

. Influenza
14. Meningococcal disease

15. Any other vaccine required by Connecticut General Statutes §19a-7f

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141(e)

All students in grades K-6 are required to have received two (2) doses of measles, mumps, and rubella
vaccine or serologic proof of immunity. Students entering kindergarten shall show proof of having
received two (2) doses of varicella vaccine, laboratory confirmation of immunity, or present a written
statement signed by a physician, physician assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse indicating
the individual has had varicella based on family or medical history.

Students shall be exempt from the appropriate provisions of this policy when:

1. they present a certificate from a physician or local health agency stating that initial
immunizations have been given and additional immunizations are in process under guidelines
and schedules specified by the Commissioner of Health Services; or

2. they present a certificate from a physician stating that in the opinion of such physician,
immunization is medically contraindicated because of the physical condition of such child; or

3. they present a statement from their parents/guardians that such immunization would be
contrary to the religious beliefs of such child or his/her parents/guardians; such statement to
be officially acknowledged by a notary public or a judge, a court clerk/deputy clerk, a justice of
the peace, or a Connecticut attorney, or

4. in the case of measles, mumps, or rubella, present a certificate from a physician, physician
assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse, or from the Director of Health in such child's
present or previous town of residence, stating that the child has had a confirmed case of such
disease; or

in the case of Hemophilus influenza type B has passed his or her fifth birthday; or

6. in the case of diphtheria, tetanus and pertussis have a medical exemption confirmed in writing
by a physician, physician assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse (per C.G.S. 19a-7f).

The school nurse will report to the District Medical Advisor and local directors of health of any
occurrence of State of Connecticut defined reportable communicable diseases.

Student Medical Care at School

School personnel are responsible for the immediate care necessary for a student whose sickness or
injury occurs on the school premises during school hours or in school-sponsored and supervised
activities.

If a child's injury requires immediate care, the parent/guardian will be contacted by the school nurse,
the Principal, or his/her designee, and advised of the student's condition. When immediate medical or
dental attention is indicated, and when parents/guardians cannot be reached, the student will be
transported to the nearest hospital.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS

Legal Reference:

Policy adopted:
Policy revised:

Source: CABE

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-203
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-204
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-204a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-204c
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-205
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-206
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-206a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-207
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-208
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-208a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-209
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-210
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-212
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-212a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-213
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-214
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-214a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-214b
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-217a
20US.C.1232g

42 U.S.C. 1320d-1320d-9, Public Law 104-191

Public Act 18-168 §§ 7-9, 539 & 540

August 12, 2020
December 9, 2020

5141(f)

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT

Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141(a)

Recommended Revisions
Student Health Services

District Medical Advisor

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) directs the Superintendent to appoint a Bethany Public School
District (District) medical advisor and appropriate medical support service personnel including nurses
that are recommended by the Superintendent.

The District Medical Advisor, in cooperation with the Board and the local Health Department for the
District, shall:

plan and administer the school’s health program,

advise on the provision of school health services,

provide consultation on the school health environment, and

L A

perform any other duties as agreed between the advisor and the appointing Board.

School health efforts shall be directed toward detection and prevention of health problems and to
emergency treatment, including the following student health services:
appraising the health status of student school personnel,
counseling students, parents, and others concerning the findings of health examination,
encouraging correction of defects,

1

2

3

4. helping prevent and control disease,

5. providing emergency care for student injury and sudden illness,
6

maintaining school health records.

Health Records

There shall be a health record for each student enrolled in the District which will be maintained in the
school nurse's office. For the purposes of confidentiality, records will be treated in the same manner as
the student's cumulative academic record.

Student health records are covered by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and are
exempt from the Health Insurance Portability Act (HIPAA) privacy rule. However, it is recognized that
obtaining medical information from health care providers will require schools to have proper
authorization and to inform parents/guardians that such information once released by health care
providers is no longer protected under HIPAA but is covered under FERPA.

Regular Health Assessments

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) requires each student enrolled in the Bethany Public School
District (District) to undergo health assessments as mandated by state law.-Fhe-purpese-of such-health

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRIC
Bethany, Connecticut



Prior to enrollment in kindergarten, each child shall have a health assessment by one of the following
medical personnel of the parents/guardians choosing to ascertain whether the student has any physical
disability or other health problem tending to prevent him-er-her the student from receiving the full
benefit of school work and to ascertain whether such school work should be modified in order to prevent
injury to the student or to secure for the student a suitable program of education:

1
2
3
4.
5
6

a legally qualified physician,

an advanced practice registered nurse,
a registered nurse,

a physician's assistant,

a district medical advisor,

. a legally qualified practitioner of medicine, an advanced practice registered nurse or a

physician assistant stationed at any military base.

Such health assessment shall include:

1.

Physical examination which shall include hematocrit or hemoglobin tests, height, weight, and
blood pressure, and a chronic disease assessment which shall include, but not be limited to
asthma.

Updating of immunizations required under Connecticut General Statutes § Section 10-204 and
as periodically amended.

Vision, hearing, postural, and gross dental screenings.

Any other information including a health history as the physician believes to be necessary and
appropriate.

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



A child will not be allowed, as the case may be, to begin or continue in school unless health assessments
are performed as required. Students transferring into the District must provide evidence of required
Connecticut vaccinations, immunizations, and health assessments at enrollment and prior to school
attendance.

Health assessments will be provided by the District Medical Advisor or the Advisor’s designee without
charge to all students whose parents/guardians meet the eligibility requirement of free and reduced-
price meals under the National School Lunch Program.

The Board shall annually designate a representative to receive reports of health assessments and
immunizations from health care providers.

Health assessment results and recommendations signed by the examining physician or authorized
medical personnel shall be recorded on forms provided by the Connecticut State Board of Education and
kept on file in the school. Upon written authorization from the student's parent/guardian, original
cumulative health records shall be sent to the chief administrative officer of the District to which such
student moves and a true copy of the student's cumulative health records maintained with the student's
academic records. The Superintendent or his/her designee shall notify parents/guardians of any health-
related problems detected in health assessments and shall make reasonable efforts to assure that
further testing and treatment are provided, including advice on obtaining such required testing or
treatment.

Students who violate Board requirements for health assessments and immunizations will be excluded
from school after appropriate parental/guardian notice and warning.

Vision Screening

All students in grades K, 1, 3, 4 & 5 will be screened using a Snellen chart, or equivalent screening, by
the school nurse. An equivalent screening device or an automated vision screening device may be used
for such vision screening. Additional vision screenings will also be conducted in response to appropriate
requests from parents/guardians or professionals working with the student in question. Results will be
recorded in the student's health record on forms supplied by the Connecticut State Board of Education,
and the Superintendent shall cause a written notice to be given to the parent/guardian of each student
found to have any defect of vision, with a brief statement describing such defect.

As necessary, special educational provisions shall be made for students with disabilities.

Hearing Screening

All students will be screened for possible hearing impairments in grades. K, 1, 3, 4 & 5. Additional
audiometric screenings will be conducted in response to appropriate requests from parents/guardians
or professionals working with the student. Results will be recorded in the student's health record on
forms supplied by the Connecticut State Board of Education, and the Superintendent shall cause a
written notice to be given to the parent/guardian of each student found to have any defect of hearing,
with a brief statement describing such defect.

As necessary, special educational provisions shall be made for students with disabilities.

Postural Screening

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Scheolnurses The school nurse will screen all female students in grade 5 for scoliosis or other postural
problems. Additional postural screenings will also be conducted in response to appropriate requests
from parents/guardians or professionals working with the student. Results will be recorded in the
student's health record on forms supplied by the Connecticut State Board of Education, and the
Superintendent or designee shall cause a written notice to be given to the parent/guardian of each
student found to have any postural defect of problem, with a brief statement describing such defect or
disease.

As necessary, special educational provisions shall be made for students with disabilities.

Oral Health Assessments

Parents/guardians are encouraged to have oral health assessments for their child(ren) prior to public
school enrollment. Such assessment may be conducted by a dentist, dental hygienist, physician,
physician assistant, or an advanced practice registered nurse, if he-ershe-is trained in conducting such
assessments as part of a Department of Public Health approved training program. When conducted by
a dentist the oral assessment must include a dental examination. If another such provider conducts the
assessment, it must include a visual screening and risk assessment.

Immunizations/Vaccinations

No student will be allowed to enroll in district schools without adequate immunization against the
following diseases:

Measles

Rubella

Poliomyelitis

Diphtheria

Tetanus

Pertussis

Mumps

Hemophilus influenza type B

0 0 N oo

Hepatitis B

[uny
o

. Varicella (Chickenpox)

Juy
—

. Hepatitis A

[y
[y}

. Pneumococcal disease

-
w

. Influenza

-
'S

. Meningococcal disease

funy
(82

. Any other vaccine required by Connecticut General Statutes §19a-7f

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141(e)

All students in grades K-6 are required to have received two (2) doses of measles, mumps, and rubella
vaccine or serologic proof of immunity. Students entering kindergarten shall show proof of having
received two (2) doses of varicella vaccine, laboratory confirmation of immunity, or present a written
statement signed by a physician, physician assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse indicating
the individual has had varicella based on family or medical history.

Students shall be exempt from the appropriate provisions of this policy when:

1.

they present a certificate from a physician, physician assistant, advanced practice registered

nurse, or local health agency stating that initial immunizations have been given and additional
immunizations are in process under guidelines and schedules specified by the Commissioner of
Health Services; or

they present a certificate from a physician, physician assistant, advanced practice registered

nurse, stating that in the opinion of such physieian; medical provider immunization is medically

contramdlcated because of the physncal condltlon of such chlld._Sus:hJﬂLtlﬁcanQnJMlLbﬁ
) C ) 1€ DE D A

they present a statement from their parents/guardians that such immunization would be
contrary to the religious beliefs of such child or his/her the parents/guardians; such statement
to be officially acknowledged by a notary public or a judge, a court clerk/deputy clerk, a justice
of the peace, or a Connectlcut attorney, or

in the case of measles, mumps, or rubella, present a certificate from a physician, physician
assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse, or from the Director of Health in such child's
present or previous town of residence, stating that the child has had a confirmed case of such
disease; or

in the case of Hemophilus influenza type B has passed his or her fifth birthday; or

in the case of diphtheria, tetanus and pertussis have a medical exemption confirmed in writing
by a physician, physician assistant, or advanced practice registered nurse (per &6-S- Connecticut
General Statutes Section 19a-7f).

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



The school nurse will report to the District Medical Advisor and local directors of health of any
occurrence of State of Connecticut defined reportable communicable diseases.
Student Medical Care at School

School personnel are responsible for the immediate care necessary for a student whose sickness or
injury occurs on the school premises during school hours or in school-sponsored and supervised
activities.

If a child's injury requires immediate care, the parent/guardian will be contacted by the school nurse,
the Principal;-or his/her designee, and advised of the student's condition. When immediate medical or
dental attention is indicated, and when parents/guardians cannot be reached, the student will be
transported to the nearest hospital.
Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-203

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-204

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-204a, as amended

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-204c

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-205

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-206, as amended

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-206a

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-207, as amended

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-208

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-208a

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-209, as amended

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-210

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-212

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-212a

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-213

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-214, as amended

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-214a, as amended

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-214b

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-217a

20US.C.1232g

42 U.S.C. 1320d-1320d-9, Public Law 104-191

Public Act 18-168 §§ 7-9, 539 & 540

Public Action 21-6
Policy adopted: August 12, 2020
Policy revised: December 9, 2020

Policy revised:

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141.5

Suicide Prevention and Intervention

The Bethany Community School recognizes that suicide is a complex issue and that the school is not a
mental health treatment center. School personnel may recognize a potentially suicidal youth and, in
such cases, may make a preliminary determination of the level of risk. The Board directs the school
staff to refer students who come to their attention as being at risk of attempting suicide for
professional assessment and treatment services outside of the school.

The Board recognizes the need for youth suicide prevention procedures and will establish programs to
assist staff to identify risk factors, intervention procedures, and procedures for referral to outside
services. Training will be provided for teachers and other school staff and students to provide
awareness and assistance in this area.

Any Board employee who has knowledge of a suicidal threat, attempt or ideation must immediately
report this information to the building principal or his/her designee, who will, in turn, notify the
appropriate school intervention team. The intervention team with administrative assistance, if
necessary, will contact the student's family and appropriate resources outside and within the school
system. Information concerning a student's suicide attempt, threat or risk will be shared with others
to the degree necessary to protect that student and others.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221(e)
Policy adopted: September 9, 1991

Policy revised: January 8, 2003

Policy revised: May 13, 2015

Policy reviewed: April 11, 2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5141.5

Recommended Revisions
Suicide Prevention and-Intervention

The Bethany Community-Scheel Board of Education (Board) recognizes that suicide is a complex issue
and that, while the school is-net-a-mental-health-treatment-center—School-personnel may recognize a
potentially suicidal youth and, i such eases, may make a preliminary determination of the level | it
cannot make a clinical assessment of risk and provide in-depth counseling. Fhe-lustead, the Board
directs the school staff to refer students who ceme-to-their—attention—as—being may be at risk of

attempting suicide to an appropriate service for professional assessment, counseling, and treatment
services outside of the school.

The Board recognizes the need for youth suicide prevention procedures and will establish programs to
assist-staff to identify risk factors for vouth suicide, intervention procedures_to intervene with such
vouth, and-procedures—for referral to—outside services_and training for teachers, other school
mwimtammw #ammg—mu—be—pmmled—fe;

Any Beard Bethany Public School District (District) employee who has may have knowledge of a
suicidal suicide threat, attempt or ideation must take the proper steps to immediately report this
information to the building—prineipal school administration or histher designee, who will, in turn,
notify the appropriate school intervention team - The-intervention—team—with—administrative
assistanee—if-necessary,—willcontaet . the student's family and appropriate resources outside and
within the scheol-system District.

Information concerning a student's suicide attempt, threat, or risk will be shared with others to the
degree necessary to protect that student and others.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221(e)
Policy adopted: September 9, 1991

Policy revised: January 8, 2003

Policy revised: May 13,2015

Policy reviewed: April 11, 2018

Policy revised:

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5145.2

Freedom of Speech/Expression

The Board of Education supports the dissemination and discussion of diverse points of view. The
Bethany Public School District (District) shall recognize and protect the rights of student expression. It
will balance these rights with the interests of an orderly and efficient educational process and of a school
environment suitable for healthy growth and development of all students.

School administration have the right to prevent distribution of items that would disrupt the educational
process and to regulate the time, place and manner of distributing written material so as to maintain the
appropriate educational atmosphere.

Printed material produced or distributed on District property shall be noncommercial, bear the names
of at least two (2) students principally involved in the promotion of this material, and, when applicable,
the name of the sponsoring organization or group.

Printed material produced or distributed on school District property shall not:

1.  contain libelous or obscene language;
advocate illegal actions;
3.  contain false statements or innuendos that would subject any person to hatred, ridicule,

contempt, or injury to reputation;
4 threaten imminent disruption of the school’s educational process;
5 advocate actions which would endanger student health or safety;
6. invade the lawful rights of others;
7

be sold on school property nor can material which solicits funds or donation be circulated.

Distributors of materials will be held responsible for cleaning up litter caused by such distribution.

Legal References: Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title V11, 42 U.S.C. 2000-e2(a)
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Policy Guidance (N-915.035)
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 34 CFR § 106
Meritor Savings Bank. FSBv. Vinson, 477 U.S. 57 (1986)
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, No. 97-282 (U.S. Supreme Court, June 26, 1998)

Burlington Industries, Inc. v. Ellerth, No. 97-569, (U.S. Supreme Court, June 26,
1998)

Gebbser v. Lago Vista Indiana School District, No. 99-1866, (U.S. Supreme Court,
June 26, 1998)

Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-60
Constitution of the State of Connecticut, Article I, § 20

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: May 13, 2015
Policy revised: December 12,2018

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5145.2

Recommended Revisions

Freedom of Speech/Expression

heBoard-of Educationsuppe disse ation—and oh diverse—points—of view- The
Bethany Public School District (District) shall recognize and protect the rights of student expression. It
will balance these rights with the interests of an orderly and efficient educational process and of a school
environment suitable for healthy growth and development of all students.

Printed material produced or distributed on District property shall be noncommercial, bear the names
of at least two (2) students principally involved in the promotion of this material, and, when applicable,
the name of the sponsoring organization or group.

Printed material produced or distributed on sehee! District property shall not:

1.  contain libelous or obscene language;

advocate illegal actions;

3.  contain false statements or innuendos that would subject any person to hatred, ridicule,
contempt, or injury to reputation;

4.  threaten imminent disruption of the school’s educational process;

5.  advocate actions which would endanger student health or safety;

6. invade the lawful rights of others;

7.  besold onsecheol District property nor can material which solicits funds or deratien donations

be circulated.

Distributors of materials will be held responsible for cleaning up litter caused by such distribution.

Legal References: Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VII, 42 U.S.C. 2000-e2(a)
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Policy Guidance (N-915.035)
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 34 CFR § 106
Meritor Savings Bank. FSBv. Vinson, 477 U.S.57 (1986)
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, No. 97-282 (U.S. Supreme Court, June 26, 1998)

Burlington Industries, Inc. v. Ellerth, No. 97-569, (U.S. Supreme Court, June 26,
1998)

Gebbser v. Lago Vista Indiana School District, No. 99-1866, (U.S. Supreme Court,
June 26, 1998)

Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-60

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



Constitution of the State of Connecticut, Article I, § 20

Policy adopted: September 9, 1991
Policy revised: May 13, 2015
Policy revised: December 12,2018
Poli sl

Source: CABE

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5145.4

Non-Discrimination

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) complies with all applicable federal, state and local laws
prohibiting the exclusion of any person from any of its educational programs or activities, or the denial
to any person of the benefits of any of its educational programs or activities because of race, religion,
color, national origin, alienage, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, age, disability, pregnancy, or
gender identity or expression, subject to the conditions and limitations established by law.

It is the policy of the Board that any form of discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, religion,
color, national origin, alienage, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, age, disability, pregnancy, gender
identity or expression, or any other basis prohibited by state or federal law is prohibited, whether by
students, Board employees or third parties subject to the control of the Board. The Board’s prohibition
of discrimination or harassment in its educational programs or activities expressly extends to
academic, non-academic and extracurricular activities, including athletics. It is also the policy of the
Board to provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any discrimination on
the basis of protected characteristics such as race, color, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, marital
status, national origin, alienage, disability, pregnancy, gender identity or expression.

For the purposes of this policy, “gender identity or expression” means a person’s gender-related
identity, appearance or behavior, whether or not that gender-related identity, appearance or behavior
is different from that traditionally associated with the person’s physiology or assigned sex at birth,
which gender-related identity can be shown by providing evidence including, but not limited to,
medical history, care or treatment of the gender-related identity, consistent and uniform assertion of
the gender-related identity or any other evidence that the gender-related identity is sincerely held,
part of a person's core identity or not being asserted for an improper purpose.

The following person has been designated as the Title IX Coordinator, Section 504/ADA Coordinator
and handles inquiries regarding the Board’s non-discrimination policies:

Director of Special Services, Curriculum and Instruction
Bethany Public School District
44 Peck Road
Bethany, CT 06524
(203) 393-3350

Legal References: Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq.
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 20004, et seq.
Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101, et seq.
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794, et seq.
Connecticut General Statutes § 1-1n
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-15c and § 46a-81a, et seq.

Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-58

Policy adopted: May 13, 2015
Policy revised: November 9, 2016
Policy revised: January 8, 2020

BETHANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bethany, Connecticut



STUDENTS 5145.4

Mandated Revisions
Non-Discrimination

The Bethany Board of Education (Board) complies with all applicable federal, state and local laws
prohibiting the exclusion of any person from any of its educational programs or activities, or the denial
to any person of the benefits of any of its educational programs or activities because of race, religion,
color, national origin, alienage, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, age, disability, pregnancy, or
gender identity or expression, subject to the conditions and limitations established by law.

It is the policy of the Board that any form of discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, religion,
color, national origin, alienage, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, age, disability, pregnancy, gender
identity or expression, or any other basis prohibited by state or federal law is prohibited, whether by
students, Board employees or third parties subject to the control of the Board. The Board's prohibition
of discrimination or harassment in its educational programs or activities expressly extends to
academic, non-academic and extracurricular activities, including athletics. It is also the policy of the
Board to provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any discriminatio